
Franklin County
North Carolina

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005

Prepared by:
Franklin County Finance Department





TABLE • F C I NTENTS



n
n
n
n

n
n
n
n
n
f
l
n
n
n
n

f
l
n

n
n

n
—

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2005

Exhibit Paoe
Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal I

Certificate of Achievement 8

Organizational Chart 9

List of County Officials 10

Financial Section

Independent Audito?s Report 11

Managements Discussion and Analysis 13

Basic Fliancial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Assets 1 22

Statement of Activities 2 23

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds 3 24

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds 4 25

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Activities 4 26

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund 5 27

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds 6 28

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net
Assets — Proprietary Funds 7 29

Statement of Cash Flows — Propdetary Funds 8 30

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 9 32

I



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2005

Exhibit Page

Notes to the Fraicial Statements 33

Required Supplementary Information

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance —

Schedule of Funding Progress 10 63

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance -

Schedule of Employer Conthbutions 11 64

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance —

Notes to the Required Statements 11 64

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules —

Governmental Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance — General Fund — Budget and Actual 12 65

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 13 72

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Govemmental Funds 14 73

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Capital Reserve Fund 15 74

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Fire District Fund 16 75

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Revaluation Fund 17 76

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Emergency System
Telephone Fund 18 77

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — DEA Fund 19 78

Schedule & Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Solid Waste Capital Reserve
Fund 20 79



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table & Contents

June 30, 2005

Exhibit fg

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - Golden Leaf Foundation
Project 21 80

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - Community Development 22 81
Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Revaluation Project Fund 23 82

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — COPS Capital Project Fund 24 83

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — Airport Capital Project Fund 25 84

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual — School Capital Projects Fund 26 85

Proprietary Funds

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP) — Water arid Sewer Fund 27 86

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP) - Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund 28 87

Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP) — Insurance Fund 29 88

Agency Funds

Combining Statements of Changes in Assets and Liabilities —

Agency Funds 30 89

Other Schedules

Schedule &Ad Valorem Taxes Receivalle 31 90

Analysis of Current Tax Levy — County-wide Levy 32 91

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-wide Levy 33 92

Ten Largest Taxpayers 34 93
UI



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table & Contents

June 30, 2005

Exhibit f

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedule by Source 35 94

Schedule by Function 36 95

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity 37 96

Statistical Section

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 97

General Governmental Revenues by Source 98

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 99

Property Tax Levies and Collections — General Fund 100

Assessed Value of Taxable Property 101

Property Tax Rates — Direct and all Overlapping Governments 102

Ten Largest Tax Payers 103

Special Assessment BlUing arid Collections 104

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 105

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value
and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 106

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation
Bonded Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures 107

Computation of Direct and Underlying Bonded Debt — General
Obligation Bonds 108

Demographic Statistics 109

Construction and Bank Deposits 110

Miscellaneous Statistics 111



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2005

Exhibit Page
Compliance Section

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards 112

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with 0MB Ci,’cuiarA-133 and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act 114

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major State Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with Applicable Sections of 0MB Circular A-133 and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act 116

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 118

Corrective Action Plan 121

Summary Schedule of Prior YearAudit Findings 122

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 123



n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
f
l

n
n
f
l
n
n

n
n

n
n

a
n

n
n

n
n

f
l

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
n

n
f
l

n
f
l

n
n

n
n



INTRII CTI’ EC uN

Fra kim C ty’s
Letter o Trans itta



f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
f
l
O

f
l
f
l
n

a
n

n
r
t
n

n
n

n
n
f
l
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n



0
0
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0
o 113 Market Streets Louisburg, N.C. 27549
o Office (919) 496-5994 • Fax (919) 496-2683

www.co.franklin.nc.us

0
0

December 1 5th 2005

To the Board of County Commissioners and Citizens of Franklin County:

o We are pleased to present the comprehensive annual financial report of Franklin County for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. State law requires that local governments publish within six
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with general accepted accounting principals (GAAP) and audited in accordance witho generally accepted accounting standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed to protect the govemment’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of County of Franklin’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because of the cost of internal controls should not outweigh
their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’s financial statements contained herein have been audited by the independent,
certified public accounting firm of Holden, Moss, Knott, Clark, P.A., firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the County of Franklin for the fiscal year ended June 30”’ 2005 are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principals used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor conduded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the County of Franklin’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and



legal requirements involving the administration of federal and state awards. These reports are

contained in the compliance section of this report

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to

accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis

(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in

conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the

independent auditors.

Profile of the County

The General Assembly created Franklin County from a portion of Bute County on January

29, 1779. The County was named in honor of Benjamin Franklin who was in France requesting

help for our country during the Revolutionary War.

Franklin County encompasses 494 square miles and has a population of 54,181. There are

five municipalities, Town of Bunn, Town of Youngsville, Town of Franklinton, Town of Centerville,

and the Town of Louisburg, which serves as the county seat. The county has a commissioner!

manager form of government. In December 2004, the Board of Commissioners expanded to a

seven member board. Five members of the Board of Commissioners are elected from districts on

a partisan basis and two are elected at Large. They serve staggered four-year terms.

Commissioners hold policy-making and legislative authority. They are also responsible for

adopting the budget and appointing the County Manager. The manager is responsible for

implementing policies, managing daily operations and appointing department heads.

The county provides its citizens with a wide variety of services that indudes public safety,

human services, cultural and recreational opportunities and others. It is also the Home of

Louisburg College, the nation’s oldest junior college. The college was founded in 1787 and offers

a strong academic program in humanities, sciences, and business.

NC General Statutes require formal budgetary accounting for all funds. Departments of the

County are required to submit their request for funding by April 1st of each year. These requests

are used as a starting point for developing the proposed budget. The County Manager presents

the proposed budget to the Board of Commissioners by June 1. The County Board of

Commissioners is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and must adopt an

annual budget by June 30th of each year. The adopted budget is prepared by fund and function

(e.g., public safety). Department heads can request transfers between line items and are approved

by the County Manager. The manager has the authority to approve transfers between the same

functions; however, he must inform the Board of Commissioners if he transfers monies outside of

function appropriations. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each

individual governmental fund that has an annual budget adopted. A project ordinance is used to

establish a budget for a project that extends over more than one fiscal year. Project length budget

to actual comparisons for each governmental fund that a project length budget has been adopted

is also included in this report.

MAJOR INITIATIVESICHANGES

Activities undertaken by the County during the year further confirmed the ongoing

commitment to improving the infrastructure by continuing some projects and initiating others. An

increasing population places additional burdens on the County to meet citizens’ demands and
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needs for services. The years activities as highlighted below demonstrate the County’s response
to these demands and needs.

o Sewer Plant ExDansion

o In the early spring of 2001, the County made the decision to expand the current sewer
treatment plant from 1,000,000 per day to 3,000,000 gallons per day. In July 2003 the Countyo acquired an installment purchase of $6,500,000 to complete funding for the project. Constructiono began in 2003 and was completed in August of 2004. Several industries in the County have

o requested additional capacity. The additional capacity should provide enough capacity to last the
County until 2012 according to the Water and Sewer study recently released.

Human Resources Building Renovation
The County began a renovation project in the amount of $585,000 for major improvements

to the Human Services Building which houses Social Services, Public Health, and Mental Health.
Both the Health Department and the Social Services Department have needed additional space
for years and this will satisfy this need. This project was completed in June 05 and both
departments have occupied the additional 12,000 square feet of office space.

County Airport
During the fiscal year, the approach landing area was enhanced by a major dearing

project. The grading project consisted of clearing 100 acres at the south end of the runway. In
fiscal year 2005-2006, a major upgrade of the approach lighting will take place. The Airport has
great potential and if funds become available to expand the runway, larger corporate jets may be
lured from the Raleigh-Durham Airport and stationed here in our county which would increase our
tax base.

Also during fiscal year 2004-2005, the Franklin County Airport Commission was re
established. This commission will make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners as to

• how the airport should operate and becoming involved in developing a capital improvement plan.
They are also reviewing the daily operations of the airport and reviewing the status of the current
fixed base operator.

Transfer Station
During fiscal year 2002-2003, the County hired Municipal Engineering to design and

provide oversight to the expansion of the County’s current Transfer Station. This project has been
heavily recommended by the Department of Environmental and Natural Resources for several
years. This $1 .358 million dollar project was awarded in July 2004 and construction of the new
transfer station was completed in September of 2005. The County transfers all of its household
waste out of county to a regional landfill.

School Needs
In June 2004, the County Commissioners and the Board of Education agreed to ask the

citizens of the county to support a $30 million general obligation bond issue for school renovations,
future land purchase, and construction of a new elementary school. In November 2004, this bond
issue passed by a 3 to 1 margin. The county plans to issue the $30 million over the next three
fiscal years. School renovations have begun and the County issued $1.4 million in General
Obligation Bonds in May2005. The County plans to issue another $10 million in G.O. Bonds in
April 2006. Renovations are scheduled for all three high schools and additions will be constructed
at Terrell Lane Middle School, Bunn Elementary, Laurel Mill Elementary and Youngsville
Elementary. The County Commissioners and the School Board are also working together to
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identify funding for a new high school to serve the Youngsville and Franklinton area at an
estimated cost of $30 million.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economic base of the county has traditionally centered on agriculture and textiles, however
recently the county has diversified greatly from this base and has attracted many new industries.
Currently, 20.7% of employment in the county is in manufacturing, 25.5% in service producing
industries, 22.7% in government, 9.3% in construction and mining, and 18.9% in other non
agricultural employment. Agriculture now employs 2.9%. Tobacco, grain and livestock are major
agriculture commodities raised in the county. Currently, 64 percent of the County’s work force
commutes out of county to work.

Franklin County is located only 21 miles northeast of Raleigh, the state capital of North
Carolina. Three interstate highways (40, 540, 85, and 95) are easily reached from the county.
Research Triangle Park, the world’s largest research complex is only 35 miles southeast of the
county seat.

Franklin County’s population has increased by 29% sincel 995. It is estimated that Franklin
County currently has 54,181 residents. The bulk of the growth had been in the southwestern part
of the county near the Franklin Park Industrial Center, which is located adjacent to US Highway IA
north of the Town of Youngsville but has become more widespread recently. Development and
population growth means increased demand for housing, other facilities and additional county
provided services. In the last five years, the county has expended over $50 million dollars for the
renovation of 3 high schools, construction of two new middle schools and two Elementary schools.
Even with this, the County has been presented with another 70 million in school facility needs. The
county has begun to address $30 million of these needs since the county was successful with the
passage of a general obligation bond issue in November 2004.

With the county’s population continuing to rise, careful planning must occur to ensure that
adequate real estate remains available for potential industrial prospects, adequate water and
sewer facilities are present, as well as looking for additional funding streams to provide dollars
needed for additional county services that will be requested with residential growth. In August
2005, The State of North Carolina passed a lottery to help with school operational needs and
school construction needs. The County has also requested the NC General Assembly to allow an
additional one half sales tax earmarked for school construction.

The County has three major water sources. The County can acquire up to three million
gallons per day from the City of Henderson, five hundred thousand per day from the Town of
Franklinton and the Town of Louisburg respectively. The county issued 12.4 million COP Bond
issue in March 1999 to install main water and distribution lines from the FranklinNance County line
into the heart of Franklin County. The construction phase was completed in June 2000. As of June
30th, 2005, the County utilizes about 1.7 million gallons per day. The county currently has 1,554
residential water customers and 300 sewer customers.

The county’s largest corporate citizen is Novozymes, Incorporated. Novo Nordisk Biochem,
Inc. The company currently has 450 employees. Their current property valuation is $89.1 million.
This provided over $704,189 to the county in property taxe revenue. They are also the county’s
largest water customer averaging 700,000 gallons per day at a cost of $1,149,750 annually. While
the county is extremely fortunate to have such an excellent corporate citizen, efforts should
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O
continue to broaden the county’s tax base. Novozymes represents 3.56 percent of the county’s
tax base. Over reliance on a few large taxpayers is often viewed as a financial weakness ando could hinder efforts to upgrade the county’s bond rating.

SINGLE AUDIT

o As a recipient of federal, state and county assistance, the County also is responsible for ensuringo that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
o and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic

evaluation by management and the Finance Department staff of the County. As a part of the
County’s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internalo control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs,

o as well as to determine that the County has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The
results of the County’s single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, provided no instances
of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable lawso and regulations.

CASH MANAGEMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Cash Management - The County uses a central depository system to pool moneys from all funds
to facilitate disbursements and investments. All depositories are collateralized according to North
Carolina General Statute 159-31. Investments are made in accordance with North Carolina
General Statute 159-30. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-bearing
accounts, principally with the North Carolina Capital Management Trust, BB&T, and First Citizens
Bank. The government fund types recorded investment income of $480,463 for fiscal year 2005.
At June 30, 2005, the County’s deposits had a carrying value of $19,467,048 and a bank balance
of $19,467,048. All County deposits are maintained with financial institutions, which collateralize
deposits in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC by the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2005

• $100,000 of the bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance and $19,367,048 was
covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

Risk Management — The County participates in one insurance pool developed by the North
Carolina Association of County Commissioners. The pool provides coverage for health and dental
insurance. The county has property and general liability with St. Paul’s Inc. Major Policies and their
limits of coverage indude the following: jail and public safety officers’ liability $2,000,000, vehicle
liability $2,000,000 and property damage $43,607,755. The county is self insured for workers
compensation and has realized a substantial savings by doing so. The county has additional
specific stop loss coverage in the amount of $350,000 per incident.

Also the county has a Safety Officer. The Safety Officer reviews accidents, makes periodic
on-site inspections, makes recommendations to improve safety practices and provide employee
safety education. The county has an established safety committee that consists of a
representative from each county office building. The safety committee meets monthly to review
accidents, perform safety inspections and discuss potential corrections to safety related issues.

PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The County of Franklin sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for its public
safety employees (Separation Allowance). Each year, an independent actuary calculates the
amount of the annual contribution that the County of Franklin may make to the pension plan to
ensure the plan will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis.
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The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension
expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis.
The County currently has 40 active members. Four retirees are receiving benefits.

The County of Franklin also contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. This plan includes all
County employees. The rate of contribution is determined each year by an actuarially determined
rate. The County of Franklin has no obligation in connection with employee benefits offered
through this plan beyond its contributions to the LGERS.

A Supplemental Retirement Income Plan is also provided to all County employees. The County
contributes each month an amount equal to 4% of each employee’s salary, excluding law
enforcement that receive 5% of their monthly salary. All amounts are contributed and invested
immediately and employees may also make voluntary contributions to the plan. The Department
of State Treasurer and Board of Trustees administer the plan.

The County of Franklin also provides post retirement health care benefits for certain retirees. As
of the end of FY 2005, there were 20 retired employees receiving a medicare supplement and 19
retirees who are receiving regular health insurance coverage. At age 65, all retirees must change
over to the Medicare supplement. Theses benefits are financed on a pay as you go basis, and
GAAP does not required governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection
with an employer’s obligation to provide these benefits.

Additional information on the pension and post employment benefits can be found in the notes to
the financial statements.

AWARDS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit — The County is required by state statutes to have an annual independent
financial audit. The accounting firm of Holden, Moss, Knott, and Clark, P.A. has been conducting
the County’s annual audit since F.Y. E. 1992. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit was also designed to comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act
of 1996 and related 0MB circular A-I 33 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. The
auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports
related specifically to the single audit are included in the compliance section.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - The Management’s discussion and analysis report
contains more detailed information regarding the County of Franklin’s financial statements and can
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Awards - The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Franklin



County North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June
30th 2004. This was the sixth consecutive year that Franklin County has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated efforts of the
Finance Department’s staff and the cooperation and dedication of other county departments and
the auditing staff of Holden, Moss, Knott Clark and Taylor, P.A. Great gratitude is extended to the
Board of County Commissioners for their continued support throughout the past year.

Use of the Report The Government Finance Officers Association reports a growing awareness
that the annual financial report should be management’s report to its governing body, constituents,
oversight bodies, resource providers, investors and creditors. We agree with this direction, and in
keeping with our past practice, have made available a copy of this report to each of you, the
various county departments, bond rating agencies, the Local Government Commission, and such
other financial institutions that have expressed an interest in the County of Franklin’s financial
affairs.

A copy of this report is also being placed in the Franklin County Public Library and the Franklin
County Chamber of Commerce. The report may also be viewed from the County’s web site
www.cosranklln.nc.us.

Respectfully submitted,

Chris Coudriet Charles F. Murray, Jr.
County Manager Director of Finance
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Franklin County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanng financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type actMties, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information &
Franklin County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Franklin County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatemenl An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disdosures in the basic
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Franklin County, North Carolina as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Managements Discussion and Analysis, the schedules of funding progress, employer
contributions and the notes to the required schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’
Special Separation Allowance, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally & inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information and express no
opinion thereon.

CRAN’ONE member
huildi’ig business I’aIuc
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 7, 2005, on our consideration of Franklin County’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read In conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic finandal statements of Franklin County, North Carolina. The
combining statements and individual nonmajor lund schedules, as well as the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular 4133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
end NonPmfit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In our
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is falily stated, hi aN material
respects, In relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The other data in this report designated as “Statistical Section” in the Table of Contents,
have not been audited by us and, accordingly, we express no opinion on such data.

a%A’& 9ttzu Xmb ñktt t’P°y6 ?‘qk &d
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

October 7, 2005
Henderson, North Carolina
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the County, we offer readers of Franklin County’s financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of Franklin County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. We encourage
readers to read the infonnation presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished In
the County’s financial statements, which follows this narrative.

Financial Highlights

• The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of th fiscal year by $29,778,018 (not
assets). In accordance with North Carolina law, liabilities of the County include long-teim debt associated
with assets belonging to the Franklin County Board of Education. The amount included in ab1lltles
related to school financing is $23,462,889. These assets are not reflected in the County’s financial
statements but the full amount of the long-term debt associated with schools Is reflected In the County’s
financial statements. Some similar County financial reports may reflect a net deficit In net assets due to
this law.

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $21,520,741, a nice increase from the previous fiscal year where the combined fund
balances totaled $18,535,536. Approximately 84 percent of this total amount or $18,158,284 Is avallabe
for spending at the government’s discretion (wweserved fund balance).

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $15,536,378 or
31 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount $989,585 has been
designated for subsequent year expenditures.

• The County’s total debt decreased by $47,202 during the current fiscal year. In November 2004, the
county passed a $30 million G.O. Bond for school construction needs. The County Issued $1.4 milNon In
new General Obligation Bonds in FY 2004-2005. All debt payments were paid timely.

• The County was upgraded in May 2005 in its bond rating from Moody’s Investor Services from an (P.2) to
an (Al) and was also upgraded by Standard & Poor’s fmcn an (A) to an (A+).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to The County’s basic financial statements.
The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) govemment-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two
different views of the County through the use of govemment-wide statements and fund financial statements. In
addition to the basic financial statements, this report also contains other supplemental information that should
enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the County.



Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Basic Financial Required
Statements Supplemental

_____________________ ______ ________

Information

Government-wide
Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They
provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual a
parts of the County’s government These statements provide more detal than the government-wide statements.
There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary
comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the agency fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements Is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain In
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental Information Is provided to
thaw details about the CounWs non-major governmental funds and intemal service funds, all of which are added
together Ni one column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes
also can be found Ni this part of the statements.

Folowing the notes Is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding Information about the
County’s pension plans.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, similar In format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide
statements provide short and long-temi information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are
the difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets Is one way to gage the
County’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are dMded into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) busIness-type
activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities Include most of the County’s basic services such
as general administration, taxation and records, community planning, community maintenance, human services,
education, and public safety. Property and other taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these

Figure 1
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activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide the service.
Franklin County’s only business-type activity reported during fiscal year 2005 is for water and sewer service. In
past fiscal years, the County recognized sohd waste service as a business type activity. However in fiscal year
2003, the county began reporting this service under governmental actMties. The final category Is component
units. Although legally separate from the County, the Franklin County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control
Financing Authority is the County’s only reportable component unit. The County exercises control over Its Board
by appointing all five of its members. The Authority had no financial transactions or account balances; therefore,
It is not presented in tile government-wide combined financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits I and 2 of this repot

Fund FinancIal Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A fund Is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The County, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. Al of the funds of the County can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s basic services are accounted for In
govemmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow In and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial
resources focus. In modified accrual accounting, revenues are recognized when they become available and
expenditures are reported when the obligations were incurred. As a result, the governmental fund financial
statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine If there we more or less
financial resources available to finance the County’s programs. The relationship between government activities. (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds Is described In
a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget Is a
legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County,
and the decisions of the Board of Commissioners about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It
also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget
ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and Is presented using
the same format language, arid dassifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures aid Changes In
Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final
budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances In the
General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The County utilizes one proprietary fund. The County uses an Enterprise Fund to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County
uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer activity. This fund is the same as the function shown In
the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of the County.
The County currently has one internal service fund call the Insurance Fund. Actual payments for health insurance,
property and riabiuty Insurance, and workers compensation payments are recorded.

Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. These funds
are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the County’s own programs. The County has four agency funds.



Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are on pages 24-26 of this report

Required Supplemental information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report Includes certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s progress in funding Its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found
beginning on page 58 of this repoit

Government-wide FInancial Analysis

The County’s government-wide financial statements presented in fiscal year ending 2003 marked the beginning of
a new era in financial reporting for the County and many other units of govemment across the United States.
Prior to this year, the County maintained their governmental and proprietary fund groups as two separate and
very distinct types of accounting without any type of consolidated statement that accurately reflected the
operations and net assets of the government as a whole. There was a total column that appeared on the financial
statements, but it was a memorandum total only. No attempt was made to adjust the statements In such a way
that the total column would represent the overall financial condition of the County. These statements were
basically the equivalent of the fund financial statements that appear in this report with fiduciary funds and two
account groups, the long-term debt and the general fixed assets, included.

The changes in the financial statement-reporting model were mandated by the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). GASB Statement 34 dictated the changes you see in the County’s financial reports as
well as those of many other units of govemment when comparing to the County’s financial reports prior to FYE
2003. The County was required to implement these changes in EYE 2003. The current year reflects the GASB 34
change as well and all future years will.

Figure 2 (below) represents comparative data for the County’s total assets, total liabilities, and net assets for EYE
2004 and EYE 2005.

C
Figure 2

FRANKLIN COUNTY’S NET ASSETS

Gnn
ActMdes AetMtks Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

cwrentandcthuassa $ 26,449,005 $ 24,187,506 $ 4,938466 $ 4,251,074 $ 31,387,471 $ 28,438,580
Capitala 25,916,341 24.050,482 25.096.517 25,174.332 51.012,858 49,22(814

Totala 52,365,346 48.237,988 30.034.983 29,425,406 82,400,329 77,663394

Long.wm liabilities outstanding 32,541,609 31,673,833 17,751,893 18,666,871 50,292,502 50,340,704
Othu liabilities 1,744,008 2,512,374 584,801 415,154 2,328809 2,927.528

Total liabilities 34,285.617 34,186,207 18,336,694 19,082,025 52,622,311 53,268,232

a
Invested in capital assets, net of
related dat 17,401,192 16,636,245 7,385,484 6,539,122 24,786,676 23,175,367

Restrided 840,076 - - - 840,076 -

unrestricted (161,539) (2,584,464) 4.312.805 3,804,259 4.151,266 1,219,795
Taa1netsets $ 18,079,729 $ 14,051,781 $ 11,698,289 $ 10,343,381 $ 29,778,018 $ 24,395,162

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.
The assets of the County exceeded liabilities by $29,778,018 as of June 30, 2005. Net assets are reported in
three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $24.8 million, restricted net assets of $.8 million
and unrestricted net assets $4.15 million.

H;
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o The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the County’s investment in County
o owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment office and other equipment, and sewer lines),

less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The County uses these capitalo assets to provide services to citizens: consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
o the County’s investment In its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed

to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate theseo
Mother category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are sul*ct to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance
may be used to meet the governments ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

In the current fiscal yea, the county had a positive number of $4.15 million in unrestricted net assets. However In
fiscal year ending 2003, the county had a deficit Many counties in the State of North Carolina could have a deficit
in unrestricted net assets. This could be due primarily to the portion of the County’s outstanding debt incurred for
the County Board of Education (the school system’). Under North Carolina law, the County Is respoasbe for
providing capital funding for the school system. The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the
school system capital funding by using a mixture of County funds and general obligation debt The assets funded
by the County; however, are owned and utilized by the school system. Since the County, as the issuing
govemment, acquires no capital assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding Increase In
setc At the end of the flsLyear,.jpproxüriately $23.46 million of the outstanding debt on the County’s

financial statements was related to assets included in the school system’s financial statements. However, since
the majority of this school system related debt is general obligation debt, It is collateralized by the full faith, credit,
and taxing power of the County. Accordingly, the County is authorized and required by State law to levy ad
valorem taxes, without limit as to rate or amount, as may be necessary to pay the debt service on its general
obligation bonds. Principal and interest requirements will be provided by an appropriation In the year in which
they become due.

In the current year, total net assets increased, however with the passing of the $30 million G.O. Bond and
$ expected issuance of $10 million of that in Ft 2005-2006, a decrease is expected next year. Some of the impact

of the inclusion of the school system debt without the corresponding assets was offset by the following positive
operational initiatives and results:

• Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by increasing the tax collection percentage from
96.07 to 96.74%.

• Continued low cost of debt due to the County’s bond ratIng.

• Continued land use planning in determining future site locations for schools.

• An unanticipated Increase in sales tax revenue of $1.06 million.

• An additional $932,000 above budget iii current year tax collections.



Figure 3

FRANKLIN COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

____________________ ____________________ ______

Td

_______

FYfl)5 FY2S FY25 FY4 FY2 FY24

$ 8,808348 $ 7,913464 $ 432Z757 $ 3,544357 $ 13,034(I $ 11,461,911
7,48558 7,146,407 - - 7,485,9(8 7,146,407

620,758 997,82 5fl4W 1,709,599 1,161,IS 2,707,451

27,545,182 24764,9% - - 27,545,182 24764,9%
9,434.955 - 9,434.955 8,m,344
1,141,866 990,926 37,881 15,943 1,185,747 1,016,8@

Td rewan 55,OC$I2 52,195C 4X6,W8 5,281, 59,848,993 5Z4%SG

5,684247 3781,013 - - 5,684247 3,781,013
11,462,533 10,494309 - - 11,467,533 10,4963(9

Endcand Hsc Thvdcçna 3,212,065 5,468,254 - - 3,212,065 5,468,254
15,821401 15,021,264 - - 15,821,931 a

Qiftiel and Peas 1,087,237 Ifl - - 1,087,237 1,$S
Rbwm I1659 10,(84.326 - 1l,659 10,004,326

1,144115 1,588,798 - - 1,146,215 1,588,1%
- - 4792,247 4,681,936 4M347 4,681,6

Tc.a oqt” 49,618,457 47,569,23 4,792,247 4,681336 54,410,704 2,251,459

5,424,455 Api cxi 13,791 599,968 5,438,246 5,483

T..Ja, (1,34jji7) (1,372,873) 1341,117 1,372,873

hxehinaassds 4pW8 3fl647 1,354,908 1,972,836 5,438.246 5325,4*3

3i4,1 r&atal 13,994391 10,743,744 8.370,545 24gm 19,1 143
tctneiLC)

$ 18,079,73 $ 13,994391 $ I1,698,2 $ 10,343,381 $ 3,778,018 $ 24,339,772

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by $4,083,338 or 29.17
percent Key elements ae as follows:

p valorem Tax collections increased by $780,232. There was a decrease h the General fund tax rate
from 99.95 to 79.0 cents per $100 of valuation due to property revaluation.



• Sales Tax revenue increased by $1,055,611 due to what appears to be a recovery of North Carolina
o economy. Sales Tax collections were up 10 percent State wide and the County itself experienced a 14

percent growth.

Sales and Services increased by $892,684. Solid Waste and Sheriff and Jail fees made up the majority of
the rncrease.

Business-type activities: The net assets in Business-type activities increased by $3.25 million. A 9 m*on
sewer treatment expansion was completed during the year and Charges for services increased by $681,400. The
county’s customer base increased by 629 or 40.5 percent

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the County’s governmental funds Is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund Is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $13,921,756, while total fund balance reached $17,422,075.
As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved undesignated fund balance represents 27.7 percent of total
General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 34.7 percent

At June 30, 2005, the govemmental funds of the County reported a combined fund balance of $21,520,741, a
$2.99 million increase from last year. As you can see, the county had a very successful year financially.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

During fiscal year 2005, the County increased its fund balance slgniflcantiy and finished the year In sound
financial condition. The County revised its’ budget on several occasions. Generaly, budget amendments fall Into
one of three categodes 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original
budget ordinance once exact information is avaIlable; 2) amendments made to recognize new fundmg amounts
from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become
necessary to maintain services. Total amendments to the General Fund Increased revenues and expenditures by
only $1,728,289or 3.28% of the total budget $1,500,000 was appropriated during the year for the construction of
a new solid waste transfer facility and some renovations to the Human Services Building.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were higher than the budgeted amount by $2,347,873. Sales
Tax revenues exceeded budget by $1,053,617 and M valorem taxes exceeded budget by $1,183,771. The
County’s expenditures were $2,799A94 lass than budgeted. The solid waste transfer station was not completed
during the year and departments were very conservative ii their spending.

Proprietary Funds: The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of Information found In the
government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $4,312,805. This increase of 508,546 was due to the debt being lowered as
payments were made. The County’s water and sewer customer base continues to increase as 629 new
customers were added during the year. This represents a 40.5 percent Increase.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets: The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2005, totaled $51,012,858 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings,
automotive equipment, office and other equipment and water and sewer lines.

Major capital asset transactions during the year included:

• The completion & an upgrade of the County’s Waste Water Treatment Plant from 1 million gallons per
day to 3 million gallons per day.

• Purchased twelve new vehicles for various departments.

• Purchased one new ambulances for the Emergencies Services Department.

Figure 4

FRANKliN COUNTY’S CAPTIAL ASSETS
(net of depteclatlon)

____

2104 --

1st $ 9,flk$16 $ 9,Wl64 $ 332X6 $ 116,478 $ 9,532,7fl $ 9j55,6G
aaa 12,776,958 12,331 - - 12,m 12,386,31

276,034 fl 276,034 284Z4
160,9 - 9,995,953 10,35,954 10,156,9(0 10,35,954

SuLan - 14,030,751 7,5$0 14,030,751 7$0,

92Z078 9W2 79,680 53,941 1,004flB3

aiddin 171,1 246,161 1,238,487 4
Q,njQ hi 1.512,480 16Z 130 46,765 6,871,518 1.9993 7,038,648

$ 25,916,341 $ 24j13,337 $ 25,W6,517 $ 25,174,332 $ 51,012,858 $ fll,6W

Mditional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 115 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt As of June 30, 2005, the County had total bonded school debt outstanding of $14,600,000, aN
of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the County. The County has $26,560,589 fri Certificates Of
Participation outstanding, $2,880,000 outstanding in Federal and State revolving loans and several small
installment loans outstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown In Figure 5.

Figure 5

General Obligation, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable

____________________ ____________________

That
2005 2004 2005 20M 2005 2004

Canal thligaticmbaà $ 14,600,000 $ 13,875,000 $ - $ - $ 14,600,000 $ 13,875,000
Caifit dPartidathi 11,729,556 12,752,958 14,831,033 15,575,210 26,560,589 28,328,168
bllnmtPiadas 5,110,544 3,937 5,110,544 3,937,ZQ
RewilvingLr - - 2,880,000 3,060,000 2,880,000 3,060,000
Ocinobligadin 1,101,509 1,108,673 40,860 31,661 1,142,369 1,140,334

TcaI kigtaniddt $ 32,541,609 $ 31,673,833 $ 17,751,893 $ 18,666,871 $ 50,293,502 $ 50,340,704

“-I



In fiscal year 2004-2005, the County’s total debt basically remained unchanged as new debt was Issued and old
debts were paid. The County issued additional debt during fiscal year 2005 in the amount $1,400,000 to add
additions at Terrell Lane Middle School. The County met all of its obligations in a timely fashion.

The County’s most recent bond ratings, received in connection with a refunding issue In March, are shown belaw

Moody’s Investor Services Al
Standard & Pool’s

This increase in bond rating is a clear indication of the sound financial condition of The County. This achievement
helps keep interest costs low on the County’s outstanding debt.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of govemment can Issue to B
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that governments boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the County is $216,857,549. The County has $28,600,000 bonds authorized but un-Issued at
June 30, 2005. It Is anticipated the County will issue $10,000,000 during FY 2005-2006.

Additional information regarding the County’s long-term debt can be found In Note 11.7.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for Franklin County was 3.8 percent at June 30, 2005 whIch Is considerably less
when compared to last year which was 6.1 percent This compares favorably to the state’s average of 4.6
percent and the national average 5.lpercent

• Inflationary trends in the region compare very favorably to national indices.

• Sales Tax revenues are increasing state wide and the County’s tax base continues to graw I almost 5%
annually.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County of Franklin’s budget for FY 2006.

Budget Highlights for the FIscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

• Governmental Activities: The County has approved a $54.5 million general fund budget for fiscal year
2005-2006. This represents a $1.45 million or 2.75 percent increase over the previous fiscal year. The
property tax rate remained at 79 cents per $100 dollars of property valuation.

• Budgeted expenditures for education continue to increase. The County budgeted $14,370,379 for
education in fiscal year 2006, an increase of $ $1,053,379 over the previous year. Also4 the County has
committed to enhancing the E911 system by adding a simulcast system which will aliow communicators
to dispatch all needed emergency more efficiently.

• BusIness — type ActIvItIes: The County increased its’ water and sewer rates by 50 percent during the
2005-2006 budget As the County continues to transfer general fund monies into the Water and Sewer
Fund, management win continue to search for ways to reduce the dependency of the water and sewer
fund on the general fund. With the increases in rates lmplemented in the — two years, the transbr &
general fund monies has been cut significantly.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest In this area.
Questions conceming any of the information found in this report or requests for additional Information should be
directed to the County of Franklin, Director of Finance, 113 Market Street, Loulsburg NC 27549.
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Exhlbft 1

Franklin County, iloim CaroIk
Statement of Net Assets

flie 30,2005

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Due from other governments
Resbicted cash and cash equivalents
Other assets
Capital assets:

Land1 Improvements, and construdon In
progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Long-tern IlabliWar

Due within one year
Due In more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Assets
invested In capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Govn
Activities

8 20,005,363
2,505,119
2,665,916

640,076
432,531

9,241,447
16,674,894
25,916,341

52,365,346

1,39062
347,926

4,057,460
28,484,149

34,285,617

17,401,192
840,076

(161.539)

8 18,079,729

Business-type

8 4,495,124
416,262

27,060

818,971
24.277,546
25,096,517

30,034,963

502,261

82,54D

995.348
16,756,545

18.336,694

7,365,484

4,312,805

8 11,698,289

Total

8 24,500,487
2,921,401
2,692,976

640,076
432,531

10.060,416
40,962.440
51,012,858

82,400,329

1 fl,343
347,928

82,540

5,052,808
45,240,694

52,622,311

24,766,676
840,076

4,151,266

S 29,776,018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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0
o ExhIbit 3

0
o FranklIn County, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Finds

June 30.2005

Major Nonmafor

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,699,388 $ 2,567,660 * 19,467,048
Receivables, net 2,062,050 147.370 2,209,420
Due from other governments 1,958,945 706,971 2,665,916
Restricted assets: -

Debt service reserve 840,076 840,075

Total asset $ 20,920,383 $ 4,262,077 $ 25,182,400

Liabilities end Fund Balances

Accounts payable and accrued lablilties $ 1,363,007 $ 30,404 $ 1,393,411
Detested revenue 2,135,301 133,007 2.268,308

Total UabWlies 3,498,308 163,411 3,661,719

RnW Boiances:
Reserved by State statute 1,685,697 638,684 2,522,381
Reserved for

Debt service - 840.076 840,076
Unreserved:

Designatedforsubsequentyear’sexpendtlure 1O°, 397
General fund O03,WC 989.585
Reported In nonmajor special revenue funds 74,101 74,101

Board designated for Cooperative Extension 27,940 27,940
Board designated for EMS 422,126 422,126
Board designated for Recreation 174.971 - 174,971
Undeslgnated —4434,flfr’ - 13,921,756

Unreserved. reported In nonmajoc qvy
Special revenue finds 1,668,419 1,668,419
Caplisi — finds 879,386 879,386

Total fund balances 17,422,075 4.098,686 21,520,741

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 20,920,383 $ 4,262,077

Amounts reported for governmental activities hi the statement of net assets (ExhtR 1) we

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported In the funds. 25,916,341
Internal service fund Is used by management to charge Insurance costs to Individual
funds; the assets and liabilities of the intemal service fund Is Included In governmental
activities In the statement of net assets. 535,645
Other long-term assets are not avable to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are deferred In the funds: 1,920.382
Other long-temi assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore sre deferred In the funds: 295,698
Some expenditures that will benefit future periods have been deferred in the government-
wide funds 432.531
Some Nabtles, Wickidhig bonds payable, we not due and payable In the ascent w
and, therefore, era not reported hi the finds (32,541.609)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 18.079,729

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement



ExhibIt 4

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
M valorern taxes
Local option sales taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted Intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sates and seMces
Investment earnings
Mc&bneoue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Cunent

General government
PublIc safety
Economic and physical development
Human services
Cultural and recreational
Intergovernmental:

Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 27.608,437
9,434.955

264,775
272,333

7,576,655
1,528,965
7,526,753

460,483
425,026

55,120,362

4,411,047
10,909,475
5,598,734

16,292,325
1,015,483

11,202,659
445,671

2,508,598
1.502,858

53,886,850

1,233,512

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers to other funds
Transfers horn other funds
Sale of capItal assets
Proceeds from long-tenn debt
Proceeds of refunding debt
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses) - net

Net changes In fund balances

Fund balances
BegInnIng of year. July,1, as restated

End of year. June30

13,698,778

S 17,422,075

4,761,368

S 4.098.666

18,480,146

5 21,520,741

(continued)

Major Nonmajor

Other
Governmental

General Fund Funds

$ 25,976,161 $ 1,632,276
7,367,417 2,067,538

2,704 262,071
272,333 -

6,563,659 1,012,996
1,528,965 -

7,528,753 -

435,419 45,044
386,031 38,995

50,061442 5,058.920

4,411,047 -

8,952,396 1,957,079
5,329,771 268,963

16,292,325 -

1,015,483 -

10,391,917 810,742
- 445,671

2,319.243 189,355
1,497,613 5245

50,209.795 3,677,055

(148,353) 1,381,865

a

(1,473,483) (3,597,04*) (5,070,524)
3,596,933 132,474 3,729,407

35,150 - 35,150
1,750,000 1,400,000 3,150,000
5,550,000 - 5,550,000

(5,586,950) - (5,586,950)
3.871.650 (2,064,fl 1,807,083

3,723,297 (682,702) 3,040,595

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement.
“C



0
o
o (continued)

o FranklIn County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in funds balances - total governmental funds $ 3,040.595

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However hi the
Statement of ActMties the cost of those assets Is capitalized and
allocated over the life of the asset 3,005,830

o The allocation of the cost of assets over the life of the asset through
depreciation is not a current financial use In the funds; thereforeo depredation expense is not recorded In these statements. (1,139,971)

Assessments during the year provide current financial resources and are
reported as revenues In the funds. This transaction has no impact on
net assets since assessment income was accrued In a prior period. (49,345)

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. This transaction has no
effect on net assets. 2,575,060

The net issuance of long-term debt creates current financial resources
which are recognized in the govemrnental funds. This transaction
has no impact on net assets. (3,450,000)

The net loss of Internal service activity Is reported in the government-wide
statements. (275,271)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not reqube
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
hi governmental funds:

Compensated absences accrued 10.189
Retirement expenses accrued (3.025)

Ad Valorern tax revenues in the statement of revenues that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (63,255)

Costs associated with the refinancing of bonds have been deferred 432.531

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 4,083,338

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



ExhIbitS

Franklin County, Nodh Carolina
Statement ci Revenues, Expendlures, and Changes hi Fund Balances -

Budget and Adual - Gened Fund
For the Year Ended June 30,2005

Variance
With Final

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 24,585,990 $ 24,792,390 $ 25,976,161 $ 1,183,771
Local option sales tax 5,313,800 6,313,800 7,367,417 1,053,617
Other taxes and lIcenses 1,000 1,000 2,704 1,704
L1nresbidedlnte,ovemmentaI 90,500 90,500 272,333 181,833
Restricted Intergovernmental 6,348,088 7,126,855 6,563,659 (563,196)
Pemilts and fees 1,216,330 1,216,330 1,528,965 312,635
Sales and servIces 7,557,907 7,651,821 7,528,153 (123,088)
investment earnIngs 200,000 200,000 435,419 235,419
MIscellaneous 144,843 320,873 386,031 65,158

Total revenues 46,458,458 47,713,569 50,061,442 2,347,873

Expenditures
Current

General government 3,292,223 4,772,497 4.411,047 361,450
Pubic safety 9,972,558 9,397,538 8,952,398 445,142
Economic and physicel development 5,256,736 6,174,213 5,329,771 844.442
Rnnan services 17,204.011 17,044,790 16,292,325 752,465
QiUaI aid reaeational 1,191,202 1,160,921 1,015,483 165,438

hitergovemmentat
Educeflon 10,391,917 10,391,917 10,391,917

OeM seMce:
Principal retIrement 2,495,578 2,457,578 2,319,243 138,335
Interest and other charges 1,551,835 1,589.835 1,497,613 92,222

Total expendItures 51.356,060 53,009.289 50.209,795 2,799,494

Revenues under expendItures (4,897,602) (5,295,720) (146,353J 5,147,367

Other andng scnn (uses)
Transfers bOther funds (1,398,483) (1,473,483) (1.473,483)
Loan p.’’ed- 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,750,000 -

Proceeds ci refi.mdng debt - 5,328,524 5.550,000 221,476
Proceeds from refunded debt esoow agent - (5.250,000) (5,586,950) (336,950)
Transfers from other funds 3,556,500 3,556,500 3,598,933 40,433
Saleofcapltalasses - 35,000 35,150 150

Total other flnandng sources (uses) -net 3,903,017 3,946,541 3.871.650 (74.691)

Revenues and other financIng sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ (989,585) $ (1,349,179) 3,723,297 $ 5,072,476

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1 13,698,778

End of year. Jtme 30 $ 17,422,075

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of thIs statement
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0
0
0
0
0

Major Major

Internal Service
Enterprise Fund Fund

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other governments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land, improvements, and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Liabilities
Current liabUlties:

Mcounts payable
Accrued payroll
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
General obligation bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
General obligation bonds payable

Net Assets
Invested h capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Water and Sewer
Fund

$ 4.495,124
416,282

27,060
4,938,466

818,971
24,277,546
25,096,517
25,096,517

30,034,983

479,761
22,500
82,540
40,660

954,488
1,580,149

16,756,545

18,336,694

7.385,484
4,312,805

$ 11,698,289

Insurance Fund

$ 538,316

538,316

538,316

2,671

2,671

2,671

535,645

$ 535,645

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005

ExhIbit 6

Total assets

Total liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



ExhIbit 7

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Major Major

Internal Service

______________

Fund

Water and Sewer

Operating revenues
Charges for water
Charges for sewer
Charges for services
Water and sewer taps
Miscellaneous

__________________ __________________

Total operating revenues

_______________ ________________

Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Water purchases
Contracted services
Other operating expenses
Depreciatioii

________________ _________________

Total operating expenses

_______________ ________________

Operating income (loss)

________________ ________________

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings
interest expense

_________________ _________________

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) - net

_________________ _________________

Capital contributions
EDA grant

____________ _____________

Income (loss) before transfers

_________________ _________________

Transfers
Transfer from General Fund

______________ ______________

Change in net assets

_________________ _________________

Net assets
Beginning of year, July 1

________________ ________________

End of year, June30

________________ ________________

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise Fund

Fund

$ 2,927,847
875,243

277,054
147,613

4,227,757

644,282
2,102,124

106,237
502,997
740,087

4,095,727

132,030

37,881
(696,520)

(658,639)

540,400

13,791

1,341,117

1,354,908

10,343,381

$ 11,698,289

a

Insurance Fund

$

3,077,969

3,077,969

3,364,352

3,364,352

(286,383)

11,112

11,112

(275,271)

(275,271)

810,916

$ 535,645

29



ExhibIt 8

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30. 2005

Major Major

internal Service
Enterprise Fund

Water and

Fund

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash — to employees for services
Customer deposits received
Customer deposits returned

Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities

Transfers hi
Transfer out

Net cash provided by noncapital
financlrig activities

Sewer Fund

$ 4,292,935
(2,541,410)

(654,944)
19,560

1,116,141

1,341,117

1,341,1 17

insurance Fund

$ 3,077,969
(3.576,510)

(498,541)

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities

Acquisition and construction of
capital assets

Principal paid on bonds
issuance of long-term debt
interest paid on bonds
Capital contributions - federal grant

Netcash provided bycapital and
related fhianclng activities

Cash flows from Investing activities
Interest on Investments

(662,272)
(924,177)

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 752,570 (487,429)

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

3,742,554

S 4,495,124

1,025,745

5 538,316

(696,520)
540.400

(1.742.569)

_7,881 11,112

(continued)



Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Exhibit 8
(concluded)

Major Major

Enterprise Internal Service
Fund Fund

Water and

ReconcilIation of operating loss
to net cash provided by operating
actMties

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

Income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities
Decrease in accrued payroll
Increase in customer deposits
Increase In accrued vacation pay

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

984,111

$ 1,116,141

Insurance Fund

$ (286,383)

(212,158)

S (498,541)

Sewer Fund

$ 132,030

740,087 -

65,178 -

169,948 (212,158)
(19,861) -

19,560 -

9,199 a

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement.



ExhibIt 9

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Flduclanj Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Miscellaneous liabilities

Net Assets

Agency
Funds

S 53.452

53,452

$

Tha nntps to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Franklin County and its component unit conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting polides:

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100
counties established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-1O. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
County and its component unit, a legally separate entity for which the County is financially
accountable.

Franklin County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority exists to issue
and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development purposes.
The Authority is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, all & who are
appointed by the county commissioners. The County can remove any commissioner of the
Authority with or without cause. The Authority has no financial transactions or account
balances; therefore, it is not presented in the combined financial statements. The Authority
does not issue separate financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus — Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government (the County). These statements indude
the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting & internal activities. Interfund
transactions provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. These
statements distinguish between the govemmental and business-type actMties of the
County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement & activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the business-type activity of the County and for each function & the County’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are dearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients & goods or services offered
by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirernents of a particular program. Revenues that are not dassifled
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

33



Franklin County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
County’s funds, induding its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category —

governmental, proprietaty and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major govemmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining govemmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor fUnds.
Franklin County has one enterprise fund and one internal service fund, both of which are
major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
bansacfions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the fdlowing major governmental fund:

General Fund - This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources & the general government, except those required to be accounted for ire another
fund.

The County reports the fdlowing major enterprise fund: a
Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for water and sewer operations within
the County.

The County reports the following major internal service fund:

Insurance Fund — This fund is used to account for insurance transactions.

The County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds — Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement
of operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on
behalf of others. The County maintains four agency funds: the Social Services Fund, which
accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Sodal Services for the benefit of
certain indMduals; the Fines and Forfeitures Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited
with the County and then remitted to the Franklin County Board of Education; the City Ad
Valorem and Motor Vehide Tax Fund which accounts for registered motor vehicle property
taxes and other property taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various
municipalities within the County; and the Jail Fund, which accounts for moneys received
from inmates.



Franklin County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained
during the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Pmpiietai and Fiduciaa’y Fund Financial Statements. The government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus, except for the agency funds, which have no measurement
focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis & accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives)
value without directly receMng (or giving) equal value in exchange, indude property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues indude all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally resuft from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers
for sales and services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds indude the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, daims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-temi debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.
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The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-
end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue
because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles
in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Franklin County is responsible for
billing and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehides on behalf of all
municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For those motor vehicles registered
under the staggered system and for vehicles newly registered under the annual system,
property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The
billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for
vehicles registered from March 2004 through February 2005 apply to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are shown as a
receivable on these financial statements. For motor vehicles that are renewed under the
annual system, taxes are due on May I of each year and the uncollected taxes are reported
as a receivable on the financial statements offset by deferred revenues because the due
date and the date upon which the interest begins to accrue passed prior to June 30. The
taxes for renewal vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as of year-
end are also reflected as deferred revenues at June 30, 2005 because they are intended to
finance the County’s operations during the 2005 fiscal year.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are
recognized as revenue. lntergovemmental revenues and sales and services are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.
Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net
assets available to finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and
then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting
Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those
pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.
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The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’á Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments and related
standards. These new standards provided for significant changes in terminology and
presentation and for the inclusion of Managements Discussion and Analysis as required
supplementary information.

C. Budgetary Data

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An
annual budget is adopted for the general fund, four of the special revenue funds (Capital
Reserve Fund, Fire District Fund, DEA Fund, and the Emergency Telephone System Fund),
the Insurance Fund (an internal service fund), and the Water and Sewer Fund. All annual
appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are adopted for the capital
projects funds, three of the special revenue funds, (the Community Development Fund, the
Revaluation Project Fund, and the Golden Leaf Foundation Fund), and the Water and
Sewer Capital Project. All budgets are prepared using the modified accn.ial basis of
accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for
the general fund, at the departmental level for the special revenue and enterprise funds, and
at the object level for the capital projects funds. The balances in the Capital Reserve Fund
will be appropriated when transferred to a capital projects fund in accordance with the
project ordinance adopted for the reserve fund. The County Manager is authorized by the
budget ordinance to transfer appropriations between functional areas within a fund up to
$10,000. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary, the
effects of which were not material.

D. Assets, Uabilitles, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits & the County are made in board-designated official depositories and are
secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County may designate, as an official depository,
any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also,
the County may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the Unites States
or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States;
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies;
certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances and the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).
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The Counts investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money
market investments are canied at fair value as determined by quoted marked prices. The
securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolb, and SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual
fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The NCCMT Term
Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a
remaining maturKy at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized
cost

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools moneys from several funds, except the Pension Trust Fund and two of
the Agency Funds, to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended bond proceeds in the COPS Capital Projects Fund are classified as
restricted assets because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the
bonds were issued.

4. M Valorem Taxes Receivable 4

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and 0.8. 159-13(a)]. the County levies ad
valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal
year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not
accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of
January 1, 2005.

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage &
receivables that were written off fr’i prior years.

6. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
Minimum capitalization cost is: $50,000 for buildings and building improvements; and $5,000
for equipment, vehicles, and fumiture. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
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The County holds title to certain Franklin County Board of Education properties that have not
been induded in capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit
installment purchase financing & acquisition and constwction costs and to permit the
County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for constn.iction costs. Agreements between the
County and the Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the fadrities, full
responsibility for maintenance & the facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to
the properly back to the Board of Education, once all restrictions of the financing
agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties
are reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Franklin County Board of
Education.

Capital assets of the County are depredated on a straight-line basis over the fOllowing
estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 30-15
Fumiture and equipment 5-40
Vehides 5
Computer equipment & software 3-5
Waterlines 15-40

7. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-temi obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable govemmental activities, business-type activity, or proprietary fund
type statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements for govemmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued
is reported as an other financing source.

8. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County provide for the accumulation for up to thirty days eamed
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Count/s
government-wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated
absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The sick leave policies of the County provide for an unlinifted accumulation of earned sick
leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of
retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit
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purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it
is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made by the County.

9. Net AssetslFund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net
assets represent constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law
through State statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations or restrictions of fund balance
represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change.

State law [G.S. 159-13(bX16)] restricts the appropriation of fund balance to an amount not to
exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the
fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved

Reserved by State statute - portion & fund balance, which is available for
appropriation under State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This amount is usually comprised &
accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which are not offset by deferred
revenues.

Reserved for Debt Service — portion of fund balance, which is available for
appropriation under State law only for the Debt Service.

Unreserved

Designated for Cooperative Extension — portion of fund balance, which has been
designated by the Board for Cooperative Extension.
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Designated for Emergency Medical Services — portion of fund balance, which has
been designated by the Board for Emergency Medical Services.

Designated for Recreation — portion of fund balance, which has been designated
by the Board for Recreation.

Designated for subsequent year’s expenditures- portion of total fund balance
available for appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2005-2006
budget ordinance.

Undesignated- portion & total kind balance available for appropriation, which is
uncommitted atyear-end.

II. Detail Notes on All Funds

& Assets

1. Deposits

PJl of the Countfl deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one & two methods.
Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal deposito.y insurance
coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the CounWs agents in these unWs
names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral p001, all uninsured deposits are
collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State
Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County, these
deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entities’ name. The amount & the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral
covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the
County or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of
collateral pledged for the County under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the
State Treasurer & North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2005, the County’s deposits had a carrying amount of $22,737,036 and a bank
balance of $25,394,018. Of the bank balance, $631,333 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $24,762,685 in interest bearing deposits was covered by collateral held under
the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2005, Franklin County had $2,990 cash on hand.
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2. Investments

At June 30, 2005, the County’s investment balances were as follows:

Fair Value
NC Capital Management Trust: $ 3,866,002

Credit Risk — The County’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio
carried a credit rating of AMm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2005.

Concent,’ation of Credit Risk - The County places no limit on the amount that the County
may invest in any one issuer. All of the County’s investments are with the NC Capital
Management Trust Cash Portfolio.

3. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands
In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be
taxed by the County at the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the
property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market
value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued
interest from the original due date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following
are property taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost. These
amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements. a

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2002 $ 2,039,099 $ 517,064 $ 2,556,163
2003 2,049,492 323,331 2,372,823
2004 3,093,228 190,044 3,283,272
2005 3,157.373 - 3.157.373
Total S10.339.192 $ 1.030.439 $11.369.631
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4. Receivables

Accounts receivable at the indMdual fund level at June 30, 2005 were as follows:

Taxes and
Related Accrued Special

Accounts Interest Assessments Total
Governmental Activities:

General $ 267,986 $ 1,860,167 $ 100,117 $ 2,228,270
Other Governmental 32.273 115.097 - 147,370

Total receivables 300,259 1,975,264 100,117 2,375,640
Allowance for doubtful accounts (11,220) (155.0001 - (166.220)

Total — governmental activities S 289.039 S 1.82(1264 $ 100.117 S 1209.420

Amounts not scheduled for collection
duringthesubsequentyear S 100.117 S 100.117

Business-type Activities:
WaterandSewer $ 438,282 $ - $ - $ 438,282

Allowance for doubtful accounts (22.0001 - (22.000)

Total — business-type activity S 416.282 5 416.282

The due from other governments that is owed to the County consists of the following:

Local option sales tax 1,549,835
State Child Care grant 170,935
State Social Services grants 220,362
State CDBG 153,587
Sales tax refund 184,279
Airport Grant 193,124
Miscellaneous 193,794

Total $ 2.665.916
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5. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Governmental-type activities:
Capital assets not being depredated:

Land $ 7.424,002 $ 304,965 $ - $ 7,728,967
Constniction in process 167.130 2.572.678 1.227.328 1.512.480

Total capital assets not being depreciated 7.591.132 2.877.643 1.227.328 9.241.447
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 18,179,059 806,135 - 18,985,194
Waterlines . 163,228 - 163,228
Gas lines 411,481 - - 411,481
Land Improvements 1,615,162 . . 1,615,162
Equipment 2,796,586 57,605 - 2,854,191
Vehides 3.654.285 328.547 236.725 3.746.107

Total capital assets being depreciated 26.656.573 1.355.515 236.725 27.775.363
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 5,792,768 415,468 - 6,208,236
Waterlines - 2,278 - 2,278
Gas lInes 127,217 8,230 - 135,447
Land Improvements 62,855 80,758 - 143,613
Equipment 1,510,190 276,676 - 1,786,866
Vehides 2.704,193 356,561 236.725 2,824,029 •
Total accumulated depreciation 10.197.223 1.139.971 236.725 11.100.469

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 16.459.350 215.544 - 16.674.894

Governmental —type activities capital assets, net S 24.050.482 $ 3.093.187 S 1.227.328 $ 25.916.341

Business-type activities:
Franklin County Water & Sewer Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 116,478 $ 215,728 $ - $ 332,206
Construction in progress 6.871,518 642.282 7.027.035 486.765

Total capital assets not being depreciated 6.987.996 858.010 7.027.035 818.971
Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant and distribution systems 22,261,776 6,797,468 - 29,059,244
Furniture and maintenance equipment 503,034 19,990 - 523,024
vehicles 246.161 13.839 260.000

Total capital assets being depreciated 23.010.971 6.831.297 29.842268
Less accumulated depredation fot
Plant and distribution systems 4,375,543 656,997 - 5,032,540
Furniture and maintenance equipment 307,547 44,315 - 351,862
Vehides 141.545 38.775 . 180.320

Total accumulated depreciation 4.824.635 740.087 . 5.564.722
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 18.186.336 6.091.210 . 24277.546

Business-type activities capital assets, net S 25.174.332 S 6.949.220 5 7.027.035 S 25.096.517
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Depreciation expense was charged to functionslpiograms of governmental activity capital
assets as follows:

General Government
Public Safety
Economic and Physical Development
Human Services
Cultural and Recreational
Total depredation expense

Construction and Other Commitments

$ 151,971
569,168
176,604
126,432
115.796

S 1.139.971

At June 30, 2005, the County was obligated under construction projects:

Sewer Project
Proiect

Human Services Building
Industrial Road Paving Project
Solid Waste Transfer Station

Spent-to-date
$ 1,573,566

663,031
457,864

1.118.618
$ 3.813.079

Remaining
Commitment

$ 256,604
16,086

607
202.679
475.976

B. Uabilities

1. Payables

Payables at the govemment-wide level at June 30, 2005 were as folkms:

Governmental Activities:
General
Other Governmental

Vendors

$ 765,806
30,404

Salaries and
Benefits

$ 599,872

Total

$ 1,365,678
30.404

Total - governmental activities $ 796.210 $ 599.872 $ 1.396.082

Business-type Activity:
Waterand Sewer Fund $ 479.761 $ 22.500 S 502261
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2. Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System

Plan Description — Franklin County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental
Employee’s Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and
disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System is induded in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The
State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Contmller, 1410
Mad Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by caNing (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual
covered salary. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For
the County, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers is 4.91% and 4.78% respectively, of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of members and of Franklin County are established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Countfl contributions to LGERS
for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $546,437, $548,175, and
$654,463, respectively. The contributions made by the County and the plan members
equaled the required contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description

Franklin County administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation
Allowance), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits
to the Countys qualified sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is
equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently
applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not
subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
General Assembly. Article 120 of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. A separate audited
pension plan report is not available.
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The Separation Allowance covers all full-time County law enforcement officers. At
December 31, 2004, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted oft

Retirees receMng benefits 4
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 40

Total 44

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis ofAccounting — Finandal statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when
due and when the County has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
money market debt instruments, deposits, and repurchase agreements, are reported at cost
or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States
Govemment and United States Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The County is required by Artide 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits eamed by
making contributions based on actuarial valuations. For the current year, the County
contributed $38,852, or 2.67% of annual covered payroll. There were no contributions made
by employees. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation
Allowance are financed through investment eamings.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the
December 31, 2004 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.
The actuarial assumption included (a) 7.25% investment rate of retum (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5.9% — 9.8% per year. Both (a) and (b)
induded an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not indude postretirement
benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value of
investments. The unfounded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a dosed basis. The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2004 was 27 years.
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The County’s annual pension cost and
net pension obligation to the Separation Mowance for the current year is as follows;

Employer annual required contribution $ 38,438
Interest on net pension obligation 15202
Adjustment to annual required contribution (11.763)
Annual pension cost 41,877
Contributions made (38.852)
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 3,025
Net pension obligation beginning of year 209.684
Net pension obligation end of year $ 212.709

3-Year Trend Information

For Year Ended Annual Pension Cost Percentage of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation

2003 $ 36,556 50.89% $ 205,781
2004 38,074 89.75% 209,684
2005 41,877 92.78% 212,709

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan DescOption — The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan
(Plan), a defined contributions pension plan administered by the Department & State
Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law
enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 & G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy - Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each
month an amount equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed
are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary
contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2005 were $92,696,
which consisted of $72,783 from the County and $19,913 from the law enforcement officers.

d. Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Franldin County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental
Pension Fund (Fund), a noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North
Carolina Department of State Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits
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to any eligible county register of deeds that is retired under the Local Government
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3
of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy — On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State
Treasurer an amount equal to four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the monthly receipts
collected pursuant to Article I of G.S. 161. Immediately following January 1 of each year,
the Department of State Treasurer dMdes ninety-three percent (93%) of the amount in the
Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as
monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the Fund’s assets may be used by
the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the
County’s required and actual contributions were $17,275.

e. Other Post-employment Benefits

According to a County resolution, the County provides health care benefits to retirees of the
County who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement
System (System) and have at least ten years of creditable service with the County. The
County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits. Also, retirees can purchase
coverage for their dependents at the County’s group rates. Currently 39 retirees are eligible
for postretirement health benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the County
made payments for postretirement health benefit premiums of $157,141. The County
obtains health care coverage through private insurers.

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit
Plan for members of the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit
Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term
cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or
termination & service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the
System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit
payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a row
during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed
$20,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The County
has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined
as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State.
Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan
and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible participants.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the County made contributions to the State for
death benefits of $17,203. The County’s required contributions for employees not engaged
hi law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented 0.13% and 0.14% &
covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit plan cannot be
separated between the post employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount

3. DeferredlUneamed Revenues

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the
government-wide statement at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue

$ 330,016
17,910

S 347.926

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction & assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The County participates in three seW-funded risk-financing pools administered by the North
Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Thitugh these pools, the County obtains
property coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of
$125.5 million for any one occurrence, general, auto, professional, and employment
practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for
owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, workers’
compensation coverage up to the statutory limits, and health and dental insurance for
County employees. The pools are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the
audited financial statements are available to the County upon request Two of the pods are

Prepaid taxes not yet eamed
General Fund $ 330,016
Special Revenue Fund 17,910

Taxes receivable, net
General Fund 1,705,168
Special Revenue Fund 115,097

Special assessments receivable
General Fund 100.117

Total
$ 2268.308

4. Risk Management

I
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reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess &
$500,000 up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, $600,000 of aggregate annual losses
in excess of $50,000 per occurrence for properly, auto physical damage, and crime
coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers’ compensation. For health
and dental insurance, the County is reinsured through the Pool for indMdual losses in
excess of $50,000 and aggregate annual losses in excess of 115% of expected daims. The
pool is reinsured through commercial carder for individual losses in excess of $100,000.

The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Ran (NFIP).
Because the County is in an area of the State that has been mapped and designated an “A”
area (an area dose to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management
Agency, the County is eligible to purchase coverage of $500,000 per structure through the
NFIP. The County also is eligible to and has purchased commercial flood insurance for
another $3,500,000 of coverage per stiucture.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have
not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

5. Commitments

At June 30, 2005, the County was obligated under an operating lease for office space as
follows:

Beginning January 1, 1999 through December 31, 2006 at the rate of $3.59 per
square foot plus taxes and insurance/month for certain office space for aging
services. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $38,438.

At June 30, 2005, the County was obligated under operating leases for land as follows:

Nine (9) parcels of land were rented for trash dumping and recycling centers ranging
from $300 to $1,200 per year. All leases expired June 30, 2005 with options to
extend for an additional year. Options were exercised on all of the leases at June 30,
2005. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $6,170.

At June 30, 2005, the County was obligated under various operating leases for a vehicle
and office equipment as follows:

Various agreements expiring from July 2005 to April 2009. Total lease expense for
the year ended June 30, 2005 was $52,064
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Future lease payments total:

For Year
Endina June 30.

2006 $ 79,340
2007 50,236
2008 28,203
2009 1,150
Total $ 158.929

At June 30,2005, the County was obligated under a commitment as follows:

The County has made and entered into an agreement on September 19, 1993 and
amended November 6, 1995 with Waste Management & Carolinas, Inc. to transport
certain solid waste from the transfer station to a permitted landfill. This agreement
goes into effect with the opei*ig & the Franklin County transfer station for a
minimum period & 60 months whereby mutual consent between the two parties
extend the temi of this agreement for an addItional year. Compensation is paid
monthly at the following rates:

Hauling cost $36.94 per ton (annual increase based on increase in CPI)

At June 30, 2005, the County was obligated to purchase water from three local
municipalities as follows:

With the Town of Louisburg to purchase at a minimum 80,000 gallons of water per
day. The current rate is $2.55 per thousand gallons. The obligation ends September
20,2013.

With the City of Henderson to purchase at a minimum 500,000 gallons of water per
day. Based on average consumption, the current rate is 3.49 per thousand gallons.
The obligation ends July 1, 2036.

With the Town of Frankiinton to purchase at a minimum 350,000 gallons of water per
day. The current rate is $425 per thousand dollars. The obligation ends March 8,
2022.
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6. Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2005, the County was a defendant to various lawsuits or threatened lawsuits. In
the opinion & the Countys management and the County attomey, the ultimate effect &
these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Counws financial position.

7. Long-Temi Obligations

a. Installment Purchases

In October 1996, the County entered into an installment purchase contract in the amount &
$347,000 with a bank with the proceeds to be used for improvement of certain county roads
to State standards. The obligation is payable in ten annual installments of principal and
interest at 5% in the amount of $44,938 beginning October 1997. Additional information
relating to assessments to fund this debt is seen in Note IV. A.3. Principal and interest
payments are appropriated when due.

In January 1997, the County entered an installment purchase contact with CP&L in the
amount of $225,000 to purchase certain real estate. The obligation is payable by a down
payment of $20,000 in July 1997 and fourteen annual installments of principal and interest at
4% in the amount of $19,407 beginning July 1999. Principal and interest payments are
appropriated when due.

On April 30, 2001, the County entered into an installment purchase contract with Branch
Banking and Trust in the amount of $4,000,000 to finance school construction. A principal
amount of $133,333 plus interest at 4.81% is due October 30, 2001, and semiannually after
that until a final payment due ApI 30, 2016. Principal and interest payments are
appropriated when due.

In January 2004, the County entered into an installment purchase contract to obtain
computer equipment for the Register of Deeds. The obligation is due in 30 annual
installments beginning February 2005. Interest is at 1.99%. Principal and interest payments
are appropriated when due.

In November 2003, the County entered into an installment contract to finance the
construction of a communication tawer. The obligation is due in 30 separate annual
payments beginning December 2004. Interest is at 1.99%. Principal and interest payments
are appropriated when due.
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In September 2004, the County entered into an installment contract to finance the
construction & a solid waste transfer station. The obligation is due in ten separate annual
payments beginning September 2005. Interest is 3.85%. Principal and interest payments
are appropriated when due.

b. Long-term Indebtedness

All general obligation bonds serviced by the Count/s General Fund are collateralized by the
fun faith, credit, and taxing pcer of the County. Franklin County Water and Sewer Fund
issues certificates & participation. These certificates do not constitute a legal or equitable
pledge, charge, lien or encumbrance upon any of the Count/s property or revenue.

The Count/s long-term indebtedness at June 30, 2005 is comprised of the folng
individual issues:

Serviced by the County’s General Fund:

General Obligation Bonds

$9,500,000 1997 School Bonds with interest semiannually on C
October 1 and April 1 and principal due on April 1 of $500,000
through 2007, interest payable at 5.3%. $ 1,000,000

$1,400,000 2005 School Bonds with interest and principal annually
on April 1 of $100,000 plus interest through 2019, interest payable at
3.0-3.8%. 1,400,000

$5,550,000 2005 Refinancing School Bonds with interest
semiannually on August 1 and April 1 and principal due on April 1 of
$80,000-$550,000 through 2018, interest payable at 2.65-3.50%. 5,550,000

$9,500,000 1998 School Bonds with interest semiannually on August
I and February I and principal due on February 1 of $475,000
through 2019, interest payable at 4.6%. 6.650.000

$ 14.600.000
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Certificates of Participation:

$10,505,000 1999 Franklin County Jail, School and Courthouse
Refunding Certificates of Participation with interest semiannuafly on
December 1 and June 1 and principal due on June 1 through 2014,
interestat3.1%to4.75%. $ 5,929,556

$9,630,000 1996 Franklin County Jail, School and Courthouse
Refunding Certificates of Participation and interest semiannually on
December 1 and June 1 and principal due on June 1 through 2014,
interest at 5.27%. 5.800.000

$ 11.729.558
Serviced by the County’s Water and Sewer Fund:

Revolving Loans

$1,500,000 2000 Federal Revolving Loan with interest due
semiannually on November 1 and May I and principal of $75,000 due
May I through 2021, interest at 2.6%. $ 1,200,000

$2,100,000 2000 State RevoMng Loan with interest due
semiannually on November 1 and May 1 and principal of $105,000
due May I through 2021, interest at 2.6%. 1.680.000

S 2880.000

Certificates of Participation:

$2,040,000 1999 Frankliq County Water and Sewer Certificates of
Participation with interest semiannually on December 1 and June 1
and principal due on June 1 through 2011, interest at 3.1% to 4.5%. $ 1,110,000

$8,995,000 1999 Franklin County Water and Sewer Certificates of
Participation with interest semiannually on December 1 and June 1
and principal due on June 1 through 2025, interest at 3.5% to 5.0%. 7,875,000

$6,500,000 2004 Franklin County Water and Sewer Certificates of
Participation with interest semiannually on December 1 and January 1
and principal due on June 1 through 2018, interest at 3.17% to 4.5%. 5.846.033

$ 14.831.033

On June 30,2005, Franklin County had a legal debt margin of $188,257,649.
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Debt Related to Capital Assets

Of the total Governmental Activities debt above, $9,078,720 relates to assets still held by the
County

Defeased Debt

On September 18, 2004, Franklin County issued general obligation bonds of $5.55 million
with an interest rate of 3.25% to 4.0% to advance refund general obligation debt with an
interest rate of 5.7% to 5.4%. The general obligation bonds are due with interest
semiannually on October 1 and April 1 and principal on April 1 through 2018. The refunding
debt was issued at par and, after paying issuance costs of $78,524 the net proceeds were
$5.68 million The net proceeds from the issuance & the refunding bonds were used to
purchase U. S. government securities and those securities were deposited in an irrevocable
tnist with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments until the refunded bonds are
called through 2018. The advance refunding met the requirements of an in-substance
defeasance and the debt was removed from the County’s government-wide financial
statements.

As a result of the advance refunding, the County increased its total debt service
requirements by $300,000, still resulting in an economic gain (difference between the a
present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $378,099.

The amount of defeased debt at June 30, 2005, is $5,550,000.

8. Changes In General Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in general long-temi debt for the year ended June
30,2005:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance Current
July 1.2004 Additions Retirements June 30. 2005 Poition

General obligation bonds $ 13,875,000 $ 6,950,000 $ 6,225,000 $ 14,600,000 $ 1,155,000
Certificates of participation 12,752,958 - 1,023,402 11,729,556 1,075,280
Installment purchases 3,937,202 1,750,000 576,658 5,110,544 725,671
Compensated absences 898,989 888,800 898,989 888,800 888,800
Net pension obligation 209.684 212.709 209.684 212.709 212.709

Total S 31.673.833 S 9.801.509 58.933.733 $ 32.541.609 5 4.057.460
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Business-type Activities:

By purpose:
RevoMng loans $ 3,060,000 $ - $ 180,000 $ 2,880,000 $ 180,000
Certificates of participation 15,575,210 - 744,177 14,831,033 774,488
Compensated absences 31.661 40.860 31 .661 40.860 40.860

Total S 18.666.871 $ 40.860 S 955.838 $ 17.751.893 S 995.34.8

In prior years. the general fund has liquidated compensation absences. The net pension
obligation has not been liquidated in prior years.

9. Maturities of Long-tenn Obligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt
outstanding (exduding compensated absences and net pension obligation).

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds Certificates of Participation

Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 1,155,000 $ 566,206 $ 1,075,280 $ 561,103
2007 1,120.000 553,118 1,118,594 510,989
2008 1,125,000 499,967 1,183,420 458,203
2009 1,120,000 453,117 1,234,838 402,242
2010 1,115,000 406,467 1.292,934 343,008

2011-2015 5,470,000 1,359,613 5,824,490 704,494
2016-2020 3A95.000 327,943 -

__________

S 14.600.000 $ 4.166.431 $ 11.729.556 $ 2.98(1039

Installment Purchases Total Debt Due
Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest Principal Interest

2006 $ 725,671 $ 216,188 $ 2,955,951 $ 1,343,497
2007 498,475 192,008 2,737,069 1,256,115
2008 457,617 169,590 2,766,037 1,127,760
2009 458,256 149,387 2,813,094 1,004,746
2010 458,920 129,159 2,866,854 878,634

2011-2015 2,244,938 343,772 13,539,428 2,407,879
201 6-2020 266.667 9.620 3.761.667 337,563

$ 5.110.544 $ 1.209.724 S 31.440.100 S 8.356.194
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Business-type Activities:

Revolving Loans Certificates of Participation
Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest Principal Interest

2006 $ 180,000 $ 74,880 774,488 $ 639,080
2007 180,000 70,200 804,324 612,644
2008 180,000 65,520 834,673 579,461
2009 180,000 60,840 871,085 544,485
2010 180,000 56,160 906,088 509,507

2011-2015 900,000 210,600 4,214,365 2,002,350
2016-2020 900,000 93,600 3,711,010 1,100,793
2021 -2025 180.000 4.680 2.715.000 421.000

$ 2.880.000 S 636.480 $ 14.831.033 S 6.409.320

Total Debt Due
Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest

2006 $ 954,488 $ 713,960
2007 984,324 682,844
2008 1,014,673 644,981
2009 1,051,085 605,325
2010 1,086,088 565,667

2011-2015 5,114,365 2,212,950
2016-2020 4,611,010 1,194,393
2021 -2025 2.895.000 425.680 C

$ 17111.033 $ 7.045.800

10. Conduit Debt Obligations

Franklin County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Authority has issued industrial
revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private businesses for economic
development purposes. These bonds are secured by the properties financed as well as
letters of credit and are payable solely from payments received from the private businesses
involved. Ownership of the acquired facilities is in the name of the private business served
by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the Authority, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly,
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of
June 30, 2005, there was one series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an
aggregate principal amount payable of $1,615,000.

C. Restatement of Fund Balance

The beginning fund balance of a the Solid Waste Capital Reserve Fund has been restated
to reflect the write-off of receivables that should have been removed in a prior year when the
other assets in the fund were transferred to the General Fund.
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Fund Balance Net Assets
Fund Balance/Net Assets as stated June 30, 2004 $ 1,389,194 $ 14,051,781
Receivable 55,390 55.390
Fund Balance/Net Assets as restated, June 30, 2004 $ 1.333.804 $ 13.996.391

The change has no impact on current operations.

I). lntertund Activity

Transfers to/from other funds:

From the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund to supplement
other funding sources $ 1,341,117

From the General Fund to the Fire District Fund to supplement other
funding sources 40,700

From the General hind to the Airport Capital Project Fund to
supplement other funding sources 16,667

From the General Fund to the Revaluation Project Fund to
accumulate reserves for the octennial revaluation of real property 75,000

From the Capital Reserve Fund to the General Fund for the payment
of debt service 2,250,000

From the COPS Capital Project Fund to the General Fund for the
paymentofdebtservice 13,1W

From the Revaluation Project Fund to the General Fund for the
closing of the fund 1,333,803

From the Solid Waste Capital Reserve Fund to the Revaluation Fund
for the dosing of the project 138,964

Ill. Joint Ventures

The Area Mental Health District was established to provide mental health services for five
counties: Franklin, Warren, Granville, Vance, and Nash. Each county has one board
member on the Area Mental Health Board, but none individually has authority to designate
management. The County contributed $144,017 to the Area Mental Health during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in
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the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June
30, 2005. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility to the District because of
statutory requirements to provide funding. Complete financial statements for the Area
Mental Health can be obtained from their administrative offices at 107 Industrial Drive,
Louisburg, N.C. 27549.

The Kerr Area Rural Transportation Authority (K.A.R.T.S.) is an association of five County
governments, including Franklin County. KAR.T.S. is a joint venture of the participating
counties for the purpose of providing a safe, adequate and convenient transportation system
for the jurisdictional area creating the authority and its immediate environs. The counties
served by K.A.R.T.S. in addition to Franklin County are Granville, Vance, Warren and
Person. Federal, State and local grants and users’ fees provide general support of
K.A.R.T.S. Each county appoints two members of the Authority management body and this
governing body determines the budget and financing requirements of the Authority. The
County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because K.A.R.T.S.
continued existence depends on the participant governments’ continued findings. The
County contributed $16,647 to K.A.R.T.S. during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The
participating govemments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2005. Complete financial
statements for K.A.R.T.S. can be obtained from their administrative offices at 943 W.
Andrews Avenue, Henderson, N.C. 27536.

I
The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina, Vance County, Granville
County, Warren County, Vance County Board of Education, and Warren County Board &
Education, participates in a joint venture to operate the Vance Granville Community College.
The State, Vance County, Granville County, Vance County Board of Education, and
Granville County Board of Education appoint the twelve voting members of the board of
trustees. Franklin County appoints a nonvoting member & the board of trustees. The
president of the community college’s student government serves as an ex officio nonvoting
member of the community college’s board of trustees. The community college is included
as a component unit of the State. The County has the basic responsibflity for providing
funding for the facilities of the community college and also provides some financial support
for the community college’s operations. The County has an ongoing financial responsibflity
for the community college because of the statutory responsibilities to provide funding for the
community college’s facilities. The County contributed $217,921 and $15,000 to the
community college for operating and capital purposes, respectively, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the
joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the County’s financial
statements at June 30, 2005. Complete financial statements for the community college may
be obtained from the community college’s administrative offices at P.O. Box 917,
Henderson, N.C. 27536.
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IV. Jointly Governed Organization

The Kerr-Tar Council of Government is a voluntary association of five county governments,
including Franklin County, established to coordinate federal and State projects of a planning
nature in the five-county area in Central North Carolina. Each county appoints one member
to the Council’s governing body and this governing body selects the management and
determines the budget and financing requirements of the Council. The County contributed
$21,245 to the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

V. Supplemental and Additional Supplemental One-Half of One Percent Local
Government Sales and Use Taxes

State law (Chapter 105, Articles 40 and 42, of the North Carolina General Statutes) requires
the County to use a portion of the proceeds of its supplemental and additional supplemental
sales taxes, or local option sales taxes, for public school capital outlays or to retire public
school indebtedness. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the County reported
these local option sales taxes within its Special Revenue Fund. The County expended the
restricted portion of these taxes for public school capital outlays and retirement & public
school debt

VI. Benefit Payments Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal
and State moneys. County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility
determinations that cause benefit payments to be issued by the State. These amounts
disclose this additional aid to County recipients, which do not appear in the basic financial
statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State
Temporary Assistance to Needy Famflies $ 454,728 $ -

Medicaid 32,987,427 15,646,563
Food Stamp Program 5,199,487
Energy Assistance 118,177 -

Adoption Assistance 137,967 39,959
StatelCounty Special Assistance for Adults 450,861
Title IV — E Foster Care 49,320 9,199
Special Supplemental Nutrition program for Women,

Infants, And Children 727.960 -

$ 39.675.066 $ 16.146.582
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VII. Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds horn several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of
these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate
expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant
moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds wiU be
immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompan>ing financial statements for the
refund of grant moneys.

I
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REQUIRED SU LEM N AL
o INFORMATI I N

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted
accounting principles.

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance
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Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress
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ExhibIt 10

Actuarial
Accrued

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

- $

o Actuarial

Q Valuation
Date

1213111994
1213111995o 12/31/1996

o 12/31/1997
12/3111998
1213111999
1213112000
12/31/2001
12/31/2002
12/31/2003
1213112004

Liability (AAL)
Projected
Unit Credit

60,813
98,806

117,702
137.416

$

UAALas a %
Covered of Covered

$

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

60,813
98,806

117,702
137,416
164,981
176,025
264,180
244,371
287,065
317,852
360,564

Funded
Ratio
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

164,981
176,025
264,180
244,371
287,065
317.852
360,564

Pay!L
594,940
738,941
812,112
884,420

1.000,145
1,171,956
1,233,208
1,246,941
1,203,218
1,287,731
1,464,050

Payroll
10.22%
13.37%
14.49%
15.54%
16.50%
15.02%
21.42%
19.60%
23.86%
24.68%
24.63%
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 ContributIon Contributed

1997 $ 17,069 0.00%
1998 19,798 0.00%
1999 22,435 0.00%
2000 26,186 0.00%
2001 29,610 0.00%
2002 33,028 0.00%
2003 33,028 0.00%
2004 34,445 0.00%
2005 38,852 0.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Only seven years of actuarial information is available. Additional
information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date 12/31/2004
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 26 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25%
Prcected salary increases 5.9-9.8%
Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-living adjustments n/a



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
o ScHEDuLEs — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund accounts for all financial resources of the County except those that are required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes

Capital Reserve Fund This is (he County’s Fund to account for money held for future capital
purposes.

Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for tax revenues collected by the County on behalf of
the various fire districts within the County.

Revaluation Fund - The County uses this fund to set aside money each year to pay for the
evaluation for tax purposes of real property every eight years.

Emergency Telephone System Fund This fund accounts for the 91 I revenues collected by the
telephone industry to fund the 911 emergency system.

DEA Fund - This fund accounts for money received for drug control purposes.

Solid Waste Capital Reserve Fund This fund accounts foi assets to he used for a future
capital project.

Golden Leaf Foundation Fund This fund accounts for money received from the Golden Leaf
Foundation

Community Development Fund This fund accounts foi Community Development Block
Grant funds

Revaluation Project Fund This fund accounts For expenditures for the octennial revaluation
of real property

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition arid construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds.

COPS Capital Project Fund - This fund accounts for capital projects financed by certificates
of participation

Airport Projects Fund This fund accounts for the construction at the Franklin County
Airport.

School Capital Construction Fund This fund accounts for the construction of school
buildings within the County
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Total 8,3*3.800 Z 7,set4iL. — 1.053.617 ZJS2.

oneend font

_____

nags foensIs 1.000 — 2,704 1.704 2.448

Gnea refund 48.000 fl343 56,517
State DWI lees 5,500 9,107

186,000 180.430
Tue dlspOeM lees 40.000 40fl..

________

56130
ToW 90.500 — 272,. 181,533 309,598

F.d.d end State wfl 1,010,555 5.444.077 5.880.266
Coiittadfty fees 105,500 107.445 lIon
ABc tastes ass 10,500 12.131

Total 7,126.855 — 6.563,ft. — (583.1981 6,011,166

PenMs aid feet
Budding penile 100.000 *76.454 72.264—fees eee.330 eao,773 nsa
ReØstw of Deeds fees 550, 801.736 815260

Total — 1316.330 ZjIL. 3*2.635 — 1.312.113

Sales end nidoet
Rents. conceedone. and fees 111,189 118.367 149,575
MefeeS 3140.934 3,593W 3379980
So sendoet 366,533 419,044 364,112
j%fl

—
93,283 99MM 15M42

sW aid Jell lees 980.700 659272 609,792
Waty fees end docallOes 36,300 36,552 30,408
sdjdwsstelees 1,341,590 966,597 1,240.511
tjsiienoe end ,eeae sqJad lees 731.600 1,188,727 880.426
Reue8fi° 49.896 26.405
Other 215.IM_. 210268

laid 7,851,821 7,526,753 — (1n.0681 7,183.442

Inveabilent earnings 200.000 — 435.419 — 265.419

U
Qonafu* end ph’st.wattle 6.000 8.260
masaitoc proceeds 49.373 48,563 26,066
Special eeaesimela 44.000 49)45 65963
Other fll,500 279.533

_________

mo
Tote) — 3ZOfifl_ 366,031 05.156

Tote) reueflues 41,713, 50,061.442 2.347473 — 45.788.455
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Franidla County, Noith Careilna
General Fwid

SdeóIed Reveocee. tçetdbns, ad
Cta’ee ki Fund Bwces - Budget and *ma

Fa Die Yea Ended fln 30, ZOS
(WRi CarçaalveTs Far Di. Yea Ended June 30.2004)

Extiblt 12

00wMflson —
Trag4.,,. to oeierfundec

B,. DIstdct Fund
BaPrc4ed Raid
Akpo6CapltalPmjedFrd
Water and Sewer Fund

total transfers out

Transfers from other funda
caW Reww Fund
5dM was Capital Reserve Rind
Sd5 capi Pr*ct Fund
Water and Sewer Capital Pn4.cts Fund
COPS Capital Pr*d Fund

total transfers hi

Loan1....eds
Proceeds at refunded date

t refunded date ageet

Sale&assets

2006 2004
v-LI—-
F...aI.

Budget_______

(40,700) (40.100) (40,100)
(75,000) (75,000) (200,000)
(18,887) (18,687) (18,887)

(1.341.118) (1,341.116) (1,312,961)
(1.473.483) (1.473,483) - (1,830.32)

Z250,000 2a,000 00,000
Ifl 1,333,800 -

- - 138,904
. - 88

8.500 13,130 11,078
3.558.600 3,598.033 40.433 2,050,130

1,750,000 1,760,000 - 187,000
5,Z0,000 5,550,000 300,000 -

(5,Z0,000) (6,588,080) (336,060) -

35.000 36,150 150 177,172

TodwLL,sowtes
(ueas)-net 3,868.017 3,871,850 3,833 763.914

Revenues aid sertfl .oaces
over (wider) .,trr — aid cOw
h

1.427303 (1421.703)

Revenues, other flnandng sources and
appropriated fund balane. over
expenditures and other use. $ 3,723,297 $ 3.723_ 182,830

Fund balances
Seghmh*g at year. July 1 13,898.778 13n848

(1.427,703) &1231 5.151,000

End of )teS June30 $ 17,422,075 $ 13,888.77$
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ExhIbit 15

Franklin County, North Cncllna
Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes Wi Fimd Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2004)

2005 2004
Variance

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Local option sales tax $ 2,250,000 $ 2067,538 $ (182,462) $ 1,910,815

Other financing uses
Transferb General Raid 2,250,000 2,250,000 - (1,900,000)

Revenues over (under) other financing uses $ - (182,462) $ (182,462) 10,815

Fund balances
Beginning of year, July 1 932,638 921.823

End of year, June30 $ 750,176 $ 932,638

a



Exhlbltl6

Franklin County, North Carolina
Fire District Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30,2005
lth Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2004)

2005 2004
Variance
Po&e

Budget Actual Actual

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,683,661 $ 1632,276 $ (51,385) $ 1,559,270

Expenditures
Public safety

Central Franklin Fire District 152,500 152,500 152,000
Epsom Fire District 69,000 69,000 - 61,000
Gold Sand Fire District 45,000 45,000 - 45,000
Justice Fire DistrIct 65.075 65,075 - 65,075
Klttreil Fire DistrIct 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
PllotFlreDlstilct 128,000 128,000 - 119,000
White Level Fire DistrIct 61,500 61,500 - 60,000
Brassfield Fire DistrIct 6,000 6,000 - 6,700
Mitchiners Crossroads Fire District 105,000 105,000 - 94,900
Hopkins Fire DIstrict 7,170 7,170 - 6,780
Franklinton Fire District 173,340 173,340 - 163,370
Youngsvlile Fire DistrIct 575,576 575,576 - 508,000
Bunn Fire District 288,500 288,500 - 263,935
Castalla Fire DistrIct 1.200 1,200 - 1,200
Centervilie Fire District 45,500 45,500 - 41,820

Total expenditures 1.724,361 1,724,361 - 1,589,780

Revenues under expenditures (40,700) (92.085) (51.385) (30,510)

Other financing sources
Transfer from General Fund 40,700 40,700 - 40,700

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures $ - (51.385) $ (51,385) 10,190

Fund balances
Beginning of year, July 1 207,151 196,961

End of year, June30 $ 155,766 $ 207,151



Exhlbltl7

Franklin County, North Carolina
Revaluation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes In Fund Balances- Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2004)

2005 2004
Vartance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Other financing uses
Transfertootherftmd $ (108) $ (107) $ I $ -

Apprcpdated fund balance 108 -

Excassofotheruan $ - (107) $ I -

Fund balances
Beglnnlngo(yea,Julyi 107 107

Endofyea,Jiaie3o $ - $ 107

I
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ExhIbit 18

Franklin County, North Carolina
Emergency Telephone System Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes h Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Yea, Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2004)

2005 2004
Variance
Puve

___

Adud

Revenues
Other taxes and licenses

E911 fees $ 250,000 $ 262,071 $ 12,071 $ 270,619
Restricted Intergovernmental:

Wireless communications 85,000 126,296 41,296 96,799
Insurance proceeds 48,525 38,995 (9,530) -

Interest earnings 1,500 12,427 10,927

___________

Total revenues 385,025 439,789 54,764 367,418

Expenditures
Public safety- E911

Operating expenses 190,525 183,380 7,145 118.120
Debt service:
interest 5,245 5,245 - 4,985
Principal 189.356 189,355 1 124,947

Capital ouUay 37,000 11,969 25,031 275,496
Total 422,126 389,949 32,177 523,550

PubUt — - w&esaaa
Operating expenses 37,000 11,989 25,031 26,833

Total expenditures 459,126 401,918 57,208 550,383

Revenues over (under) expenditures (74,101) 37,871 111,972 (182,965)

Other financing sources
Pioceeds from long term debt - - - 475,000

Appropriated fund balance 74,101 - (74,101) -

Revenues and other sources over
expenditures $ - 37,871 $ 37,871 292,035

Fund balances
Beginning of year, My 1 659,557 367,522

End of yea, June 30 $ 697,428 $ 659,557



Exhlbltl9

Franklin County. North Carcana
DEA Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expendita and
Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005
WVIth Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2004)

2005 2004
Vadance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues
Restrlctedkitergovecnmental $ 25,500 $ 28,581 $ 3,081 $ 17,575
Interestincome - 290 290 -

Total revenues 25,500 28,871 3,371 17,575

Expenditures
Public safety

Operating expenses 25.500 25,400 - 2,711

Revenues over expenditures $ - 3.471 $ 3,371 14,864

Fund balances
Beginning of year, July 1 15,376 512

Endofyear,June3O $ 18,847 $ 15.376

C
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Ethlbft 20

Franklin County, North Carolina
Solid Wasto Capital Resesve Raid

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes ki Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30,2005
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2004)

2005

______

2004, as restatec
Variance
Posifive

Budget Actual (Neqailve) Actual
Expenditures $ $ - $ - $ -

Other financing uses
Transfer to other fund (1.333,804) (1.333,804) -

Appropriated fund balance 1333,804 - (1.333,804)

Excess of expenditures and other uses $ - (1,333,804) $ (1,333,804)

Fund balances
Beginning of year, July 1 1.333.804 1.333,804

Endofyear.June3O $ - $ 1.333,804
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Ezdtit2l

Franklin County, North Carolina
Golden Leaf Foundation Pioed

Schedule of Revenues, Ecpenditures, and
Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

PivIect Actual Variance
AaAIa- Prior Cwrent Total b Positive
Ization Year Year cale (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted k*ecgovecmne4at

Golden Leaf Foundation $ 1,975,000 $ 809,693 $ - $ 809,693 5(1,165,307)
State giants - 21251 - 21.251 21,251
ConWbuflons - - -

Federal grants - - -

Interest earnings - - 1,504 1,504 1,504
Total 1,975.000 830,944 1,504 832.448 (1.142,552)

EducatIon 2,108,946 751,948 9,290 761238 1,347,708

Revenues over (under) expendtttne (133.946) 78,996 (7,786) 71210 205,156

Other financIng sources
Transfers from other funds 133,946 133,946 - 133,946 -

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ 212,942 (7,786) $ 205,156 $ 205,156

Fund balance
Beginitig of year. July 1 78,996

Enddyea,June3O 71210



Extdblt22

Franklin County, North Carolina
Community Development Fund

Schedije ci Revenues, Expenctzes, and
Changes ki Fund Balances - Budget and ftdz3

From irt1Alon and for the Yea Ended .ltme 30,2005

Project Actual Valence
Author- Prior Cirrent Total to Positive
Ization Yea’s Yea Date (Negative)

Revenues
ResMctedm&

CDBG 01-0-0961 $ 400,000 $ 400 $ - $ 400 $ (399,600)
CDBG 02-0-0951 100,000 210,877 257,051 461,928 (232,012)
CDBG 05-0-0951 400,000 - - - (400,000)
NC Housing FInance 300,000 258,252 (3.936) 254.316 (45.664)

Total revenues 1,800,000 469,529 253.115 722.644 (1.077,356)

Expenditures
Economic and physlcai development

CDBG 02-0-0951 400,000 399,250 750 400,000 -

CDBG 03-0-0951 700,000 204,049 263,911 461.960 232,040
CDBG 05-0-0951 400,000 - 4,302 4,302 395,698
NC HousIng FInance 315,000 214.066 - 214,088 100,914

Total expenditures 1.815.000 817.385 268,963 1,066,348 728,652

Revenues under expenditures (15,000) (341,856) (15,846) (363,704) (1,806.008)

Odw finand son
Transfer from General Fund 15,000 15,000 - 15,000 -

Revenues and other financing
sources under expenditures $ - $ (332.856) (15,848) 348 704 $ (1.806,008)

Fund balance
Beginning of yea, July 1 66,674

Endofyear,June3O $ 51,026



Exhiblt23

Franklin County, North Carolina
Revaluation Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues1Scpendltures, and
Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Actual Vadance
Author- Current Total t Positive
ization Year Year Date (Negative)

Revenues
hSscallaneousrevenuee $ - $ 397 $ - $ 397 $ 397
Interest Income - - 8,495 8,495 8,495

Total revenues - 397 8,495 8.892 8.892

AppnsaI services 836.500 771,310 - 771,310 65,190

Revenues over (undeq expenditures (836,500) (770,913) 8,495 (762,418) 74.082

Other financing sources
Transfer from General Fund 422,500 350.000 75,107 425,107 2,607
Transfer from Special Revenue Fund 414,000 - - - (414.000)

Total other financing sources 836,500 350,000 75.107 425,107 (411,393)

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ (420,913) 83,602 $ (337,311) $ (337,311)

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1 350,541

End of year, June30 $ 434,143
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E4t1t24

Franklin County, North Carolina
COPS Capilal Prcfed Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expendibires, and
Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Aclual

From Inception and ta the Year Ended June30, 2005

__________ __________

Valance
Prb ToI to Positive

lzadon Yeas Yea’ Date (Negve)

Rwn
Invesimenteamings $ $ 19,199 $ 15,754 $ 34.953 $ 34.953

Other financing uses
Transfer to General Fund (30,000) (19,224) (13,130) (32,354) (2,354)

Revenues over (under )usaa (30,000) (25) 2,624 2,599 32,599

Apprapibted fundb 30,000 - - - (*000)

Revetwes and asp. ,sI4.d fund balance
over(undefluses $ - 1 (25) 2,624 $ 2,599 $ 2,599

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1 837,452

End of year, June 30 $ 840,076



ExhIblt25

FranklIn County, North Carolina
Airport Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes In Fund Balances- Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to PosItive
Izatlon Yeats Year Date (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental:

Federal grant $ 464,546 $ 99,343 $ 78,602 $ 177,945 $ (286,601)
State grant 810,236 128,392 333,419 461,811 (348,425)
Interest - - 3,953 3,953 3,953

Total revenues 1,274,782 227,735 415,974 643,709 (631,073)

C_—
PrjectNo 344,43,6, 300,000 15,988 15.643 31.631 268,369
Project No. 36237.31.5.1 182,829 5.638 25,414 31.050 151.779
Project No. 36237.31.4.1 166,667 104,745 61,922 166,667 -

Project No. 36244.43.52 300,000 - 258,342 258,342 41,658
Project No. 36237.31.6,1 166,667 - - - 166,667
Project No. 36244.43.7.1 44,707 - - - 44,707
Project No. 36244.43.5.1 255,555 171,205 84,350 255,555 -

Total expendltixes 1.416,425 297,574 445,671 743,245 673,180

Revenues under expendItures (141.643) (69,839) (29,697) (99.538) 42,107

Other flnand sources
Transfer from General Fund 141,643 124,976 16,667 141,643 -

Revenues and other financing sources
over(undeflexpwdltures $ - $ 55,137 (13,030) 42107 $ 4 107

Fird balance
Begh*ig of year, My I 298,872

Enddyear,JuieSO $

84



EidiIbIt2B

Franklin County, North Caroline
2005 GO School Bait Construction Fwid
SchedLie of Revenues, Expend*ses, aid

Changes hi Fund Balances - Bxlga and Actual
From Inception and tar the Year Ended June30, 2005

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
teflon Year Year Date (Negative)

O Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental $ 192,983 $ - $ 192.983 $ 192,983 $
Interest hicome - - 2.621 2.621 2.621

Total revenues 192,983 195,604 195.604 2.621

Expenditures
Bond Issuance costa - - 44.344 44.344 (44.344)

1.592,983 - 757,108 757.106 835.875
Total expenditures 1,592,983 - 601,452 601.452 791.531

Revenues under expendItures (1,400,0004 - (605,848) (605.848) 794.152

Other financing sources
Bond proceeds 1.400.000 - 1.400,000 1.400.000 -

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures $ - - 794,152 $ 794.152 $ 794,152

Fund balance
Beginning of year. .JuIy I

Endofyear,JuneSO $ 794,152
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g EN RPRISE F NDS

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund accounts for operation of
the County’s water and sewer operations.

Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund - This fund
accounts for construction of water and sewer capital assets
within the County.

These two timds are combined in tIiefutII accrual exhibitc.





ExhIbit 27

Franklin County. North Carolina
Water and Sewer Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GM?)
For the Yes Ended June 30,2005

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2004)

2005 2004
Variance
Positive

(Neqatlve) Actual

Orevenues
Water and sewer chaipes $ 3,595,063 $ 3,803,090 $ 208,027 $ 3,281,939
Other charges for servIces 330,920 424.667 93,747 264.418

3,925,983 4,227.757 301.774 3,546,357

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest earnings 5,000 37,440 32.440

Total revenues 3.930,983 4,265,197 334214 3.546.357

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds:

General Fund 1,341,116 1,341,117 1 1,372,961

Expenditures
Salades and employee benefits 743,118 635,083 108,035 740,048
Waterpurchases 2,150,000 2j02j24 47,876 1,979,004
Other operating expendltres 684,860 555,802 129,058 441,293
Capital outlay 19,990 19,990 200,456
D seMce:

lntemst and other charges 750,853 749,952 901 803,937
Debt princIpal 923,278 924,177 (899) 874,790

Total expenditures 5,272,099 4,987.128 284,971 5,039,528

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ 619,186 $ 619,186 $ (120,210)

ReconciliatIon from budgetazy basis
(modified accrual) to fun accrual
Revenues and other financing sources over expencitures $ 619,186
Debt service payment 924,177
Depredation (740,087)
Capital outlay 19,990
Increase In accrued vacation pay (9.199)

814,067

Water and Sewer Capital Pro)ect Fund full accrual 540,841

Change In net assets $ 1.354,906

BR



Franklin County, North Carolina
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAPe)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30. 2005

ExhIbit 28

Resbicted Intergovernmental;
Federal grants
Stew gr

Investment e .9a
Total revenues

$ 1.500,000 $ 959.599
1.150.000 1.150,000

- 25,941
2,650,000 2135,540

$ 540,400 $ 1,499,999
- 1,150,000

441 26.382
540,841 2,676,381

$ (1)

26,382
26,381

Revenues under expenditures

Other finandag sources
Proceeds from debt

Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures

Reconciliation train budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to fufl accrual
Revenues and other sourceander expenditures and
Issuance of bag-term debt
C_—

9,150,000 5,324,598 642,282 5,966,880 3,183,120

Revenues

Project
Author -

Izatlon
Prior

Actual
Cunent

Year Year
Total to

Date

Variance
Posmve

(Negative)

(6,500,000) (3,189,058) (101,441) (3,290,499) 3,209,501

6,500,000 6,500,000 - 6,500,000 -

$ - $3,310,942 $ (101,441) $3,209,501 $3,209,501

$ (101,441)

642,282

$ 540,841



INTERNAL SERVICE Fu ns

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing
of goods and services provided by one department or agency
to other departments or agencies of the County on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the
County’s insurance transactions.





Franklin County, North Carolina
Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non.GMP)
For the Year Ended June 30. 2005

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30,2004)

EthIbft 29

Revenues
Contibuffone from employees
Interest eflngs

Total revenues

HeaKh kisnice
Pmpedy aid Paby kisuraice
Workers compensation insurance

Total expendItures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues and appropriated fund balance
over (under) expenses

Fund balances
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year. June 30

Reconciliation from financial plan basIs
(modified accrual) tu kill accrual:

Total revenues
Total expenditures

2005
Variance

Adual

__

810,916

$ 535.645

$ 3.089.081
3,364,352

2004

S 3,107,703 $ 3,077.969 $ (29,734)
- 11,112 11,112

3,107,703 3,089,081 (18,622)

Z647,703 2.666,036 181,567
380,000 378,498 1,502
380,000 319.818 60,182

3,607,703 3,364,352 243,351

(500,000) (275,271) 224,729

500,000 - (500,000)

$ - (275,271) $ (275,271)

Atha

S 3,760,240
25

3.760.265

2.352,570
357.022
239,757

2,949,349

810,916

$ 810.916

change hi net assets $ (275.271)
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0
0
0
0
0

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County for
individuals and local governments.

Social Services Fund — This fund accounts for funds held by the
County Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain
individuals in the County.

Fines and Forfeitures Fund - This fund accounts for fines and
forfeitures collected by the County that are required to be turned
over to the Franklin County Board of Education.

City Ad Valorem and Motor Vehicle Tax Fund - This fund accounts
for the proceeds of the Ad Valorem taxes that are collected by the
County on behalf of municipalities within the County.

Jail Fund This lund accounts for funds held by the jail for its
prisoners.





Social Services
Assets

Cash and cast’ equivalents $ 44jj,

Liabilities
MisceHafleOL18l°5

Fines and Forfeitures
nests

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
IntergOvernmental payable

Motor Vehicle Tax

Cash and cash equivalents

Miscellaneous liabilities $ -p

Jail Fund
Ms

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
MIscellaneous liabilItIes

________

Totals- Aft Agency Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 49.!t

Liabilities
MiscellaneoUs liabilities
intemovemm0fl payable

Total liabilities

Eflbit30

Franicila County, North Carolina
Agency Funds

Combining statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended Juno 30,2005

BalanceBalance
June 30,

— 2004_. Additions — DeducUoi!_ 2005 —

$ 190,148 ± $ 47,6SL

186.97t $ 47686$ .514 $ 190,148

____________

t_ 348a

348 74 i==1=2 Li.. _—

$ — i.913j, $ .°‘Z2t 1-
-

S I ,913.79L $ -

$ 4850

.L,c 114,712,,,

s

S 2,561?j9L

113873 $_ 5.!!..

!_ Il3,B_ $__ 5,788

$ 2,563.214._ !_ 53,452

$ 49,364 $ 2,218,728
348.574

$ 2,214,640
348,57j.

$ 53,452

nEt
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OTHER SCHEDULES

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy

Secondary Market Disclosures

Ten Largest Taxpayers





ExhIbit 31

Franklin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2005

Fiscal Year

2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2003
2001-2002
2000-2001

1998-1999
1997-1998
1996-1997
1995-1996
1994-1995

Uncollected
Balance

June 30. 2004 AdditIons

$ - $ 25,667,255
987.970
330,733
185,052
115,393
71,564
62,072
58,739
31,323
17,048
18,071

S I .877,965

Collections
And Credits

$ 24,831,503
71 7,866
96,627
53.493
26,402
7.934
5,071
4,753
2,413

716
18,071

$ 25.764.849

Uncollected
Balance

June 30, 2005

$ 836,752
270.104
234,106
131,559
86.991
63.630
57,001
53,986
28,910
16.332

1,780,371

36,658

law allowance for tmcoledbe accounts:

Ad vaicren taxes receivable - net

(155,000)

$ 1,662,029

Reconcilement wIth revenues
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund

Reconciling Items:
Amounts wilSon ofifor 1994-1995 levy
Interest collected
Discounts and ausbnents

Total reconciling Items

$ 25,976,161

17,303
(263,399)

34,784
(211.312)

$ 25,667,255

Plus: uncollected 2004-2005 ad valorem taxes receivable
on annually registered vehicles

Total collections and credits $ 25764849



Ethibft 32

Franklin County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County - wide Levy
FortheYearEndedjune3o,2005

Total Levy
Propetty

excluding
County -wide Registered Registered

Property Amount Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles

Odginal levy
Property taxed at current
yea’s rate $ 2,750,990,254 0290000% $ 21,732,823 $ 21,732,823 $ -

Motor vehicles taxed at
current yea’s rate 206,020,000 0.790000% 1627,558 - 1627,558

Motor vehicles faced at
pdor year’s rate 146,710,355 0.999500% 1,466,370 - 1,466,370

PenaltIes

_______

35,669 35,669 -

Totel 3,103,720,609 24.882420 21,768,492 3,093,928

Discoveries
Current yea taxes - 919,409 885,088 34,321
PrIor year taxes - 64,602 64,602
Penalties 3,107 3,107 -

Abatements and releases

__________

(182283) (100,030) (82253)

Total $ 3,103,720,609 25,667,255 22,621,259 3,045,996

Less, uncollected taxes at June 30, 2005 835,752 433,808 401,973

Current year’s taxes collected $ 24,831.503 $ 22,187,451 $ 2,644,023

Current levy collection percentage 96.74% 98.08% 86.80%



ExhIblt33

Franklin County. North Carolina
Malysls of Carat Tax Levy

C—-win
FocthevearEndedJune30.2005

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio’ 100 %

Red Pwpflr $ 2,510.945,604
Personal Pmpfl .499.925,653
Pubic SeMoe—. 92,54U52.

Total My-:.. I Valuation $ 3.103.720.609

TacRabper$100 -
0.79

Levy (Includes discoveilea, releases and abatements7 $ 25.600,017

In addWon to the County.wlde rate, the following table lists the levy by the County on
behalf of fire protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 200&

Fire Protection Districts $ 1,663,691

‘Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.
‘Valuation ci’ ralkoads. telephone conçafl)es end other utilIties as determIned by the Nodh CarolIna Property

Tax Con..i..Ion.
The levy Includeshaand— - -

92



$1
Edilbit34 0

0
Franklin County, North CarolIna 0

Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Percentage of
Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Novo Nordlsk Manufacturing $ 89,104,846 2.87%
Carolina Telephone Utility 35,990,504 1.16%
Progress Energy UtilIty 24,654,007 079%
Wake Electric Membership CorporatIon Utility 23,488,804 0.76%
NDOA LLC Manufacturing 12,669,967 0.41%
Flextronlcs Manufacturing 14,605,594 0.47%
Louisburg HMA Hospital 11,604,045 0.37%
Harold S. Bagwefl Manufacturing 10,069,457 0.32%
Sirchie Finger Print Labs Manufacturing 9,158,565 0.30%
Wheaton USA, Inc. Manufacturing 8.966.399 0.29%
Total $ 240,302,188 7.74%

C
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ExhIbit 35

Franklin County. North Carolina
Capita) Assets Used hi the Operation of Governmental Funds

CofTçaratlve Sthedule by Source
June 30.2005 and 2004

Balance Balance
June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004

Governmental funds capital assets
Land $ 7,728,967 $ 9,039,164
land Improvements 1,615,162 -

Bufldngs 18,985,194 18.179,069
Equipment 2,841.941 2,796,586
VeI4cIes 3,758357 3,654,285
Watedines 163,226
Gas lines 411.481 411,481
Construction-in-progress 1,512,480 167.130

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 37,016.810 $ 34,247,705

Investments In governmental funds capital
aSsets by source
General fund $ 6886,505 $ 5,462,750
Special revenue fi.mds 2,488,828 2,488,828
Capita) projects funds 25,723,641 25,723,641
Donations 1,917,836 572,486

Total governmental hinds capItal assets $ 37,016,810 $ 34,247,705
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Capital Asset Used In the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedde of Chwiges by Fw,ctlon and MtMty
For the Year ended June 30,2005

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
June 30, 2004 Additions

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
Deletions - June 30, 2005

General Government
County manager

0 ElectIons
Finance
Mapping
Register of Deeds
Tax
Other - undassMed

Public Safety

Emenq me seM
Animal Control
Code enfomement

Economic and Physical
Development

a Airport
Soil and conservation
Industrial development
Planning
Solid waste

Human Services
Sodel seMces
Health
AgW

$ 16,222
143,515
37,857

182,507
161,390
126,008

4,795,251
5.462.750

$ 16,222
143.515
37.857

182,507
161,390
126,008

4,779.828
5.447.327

0
0
0

ExhibIt 37

Function and Activity

$ - $

35,016
35.016

19,593
19.593

10,077,367 206,625 105.101 10,178,891
1,394,631 98,222 34,065 1,458,788

16,695 - 16,695
147,481 - - 147,481

11,636,174 304,847 139.166 11,801,855

8,771,854 641,867 - 9,413,721
46,838 - - 46,838

421,746 163,228 - 584,974
61,357 - - 61,357

1,274,687 1,274,669 167,130 2,382,226
10,576,482 2,079,764 167,130 12,469,116

2,607,783 682,777 19,401 3,271,159
659,596 32.000 43,142 648,464
44,203 6,979 - 51,182

3,311,592 721,756 62.543 3,970,805

1,323,361 — — 1,323,361
1,937,346 47.000 - 1,984,346
3,260,707 47,000 3,307,707

$ 34,247,705 $ 3,172,960 $ 403,855 $ 37,016.810

Cultural and Recreational
Library
Recreational
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Franklin County, North Carolina
General Governmental Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Years

Fiscal
Year

Ended Property Sales Franchise Motor Fuel ABC

June30 Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total

1996 $15,827,132 $4,648,947 $ - $ - $9,622 $20,485,701

1997 15,171,985 4,987,479 - - 8,848 $20,168,312

1998 16,607,214 5,413,717 - 6,886 $22,027,817

1999 17,239,195 5,824,348 - - 10,098 $23,073,641

2000 18,913,984 6,217,906 - 9,706 $25,141,596

2001 20,097,374 6,311,134 - - 9,690 $26,418,198

2002 22,964,733 6,345,460 13,509 $29,323,702

2003 25,108,908 6,954,074 55,839 18,969 11,395 $32,149,185

2004 26,414,550 8,379,334 101,712 58,677 10,971 $34,965,244

2005 27,608,437 9,434,955 75,393 12,137 $37,130,922
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Years

Fiscal Public
Year Servlca Total

Real Personal Company Assessed
June 30 Property Property Property Value

1996 939,822,445 364,692,745 66,864,851 $1,371,380,041
1997 1,130,800,603 219,054,689 66,864,851 $1,418,720,143
1998 1,206,200,391 261,511,730 58,305,361 $1,526,017,482
1999 1,606,027,317 288,749,950 76,441,048 $1,971,218,315
2000 1,710,691,564 340,301,621 77,012,395 $2,128,005,580
2001 1,670,944,146 402,272,197 80,161,011 $2,153,377,354
2002 1,737,762,751 451,096,588 90,191,159 $2,279,050,498
2003 1,840,115,056 458,722,309 73,785,425 $2,372,622,790
2004 1,924,008,866 508,064,402 73,562,350 $2,505,635,618
2005 2,510,945,604 499,925,053 92,849,952 $3,103,720,609



Franklin County, North Carolina
Property Tax Rates - Direct and All Overlapping Governments
(Per $100 of Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years

Macal
Year

Ended Town of Town of Town of Town of Franklin Wake
June30 Bunn Franklinton L.oulsburg Youngsville County Forest Total

1996 0.8100 0.7500 0.5450 0.7600 0.9000 NA 3.7650
1997 0.8100 0.7500 0.5750 0.7600 0.9000 NA 3.7950
1998 0.8100 0.7500 0.5850 0.7600 0.9350 NA 3.8400
1999 0.7600 0.6000 0.4950 0.7100 0.8200 NA 3.3850
2000 0.7600 0.6200 0.4950 0.6600 0.8300 NA 3.3650
2001 0.7600 0.6400 0.5150 0.6600 0.8800 NA 3.4550
2002 0.7600 0.6800 0.5250 0.6600 0.9450 NA 3.5700
2003 0.7600 0.6800 0.5250 0.6600 0.9995 NA 3.6245
2004 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.9995 0.5400 3.4145
2005 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.7900 0.5400 3.2050

Note: All tax rates are expressed in dollars of tax per $100 of assessed valuation. The tax
rate was adjusted In 1999 and 2005 due to revaluation, a

The Town of Wake Forest annexed part of Franklin County in 2003.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Ten Largest Tax Payers
June 30 2005

2004
Assessed

Type of Business Valuation

Percentage of
Total Assessed

Valuation

MANUFACTURER
UTILITY
UTILITY
UTILITY
MANUFACTURER
MANUFACTURER
HOSPITAL
REAL ESTATE
MANUFACTURER
MANUFACTURER

Totals

$89,104,846
35,990,504
24,654,007
23,488,804
12,669,967
14,605,594
11,604,045
10,059,457
9,158,565
8,966,399

3.56%
1.44%
0.98%
0.94%
0.51%
0.58%
0.46%
0.40%
0.37%
0.36%

Taxpayer

NOVO NORDISK
CAROLINA TELEPHONE
PROGRESS ENERGY
WAKE ELECTRIC
NODA LLC
FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL
FRANKLIN REGIONAL
HAROLD G. BAGWELL
SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT
WHEATON USA

$240,302,188 9.59%

1 03



Franklin County, North Carolina
Special Assessment Billing and Collections
General fund
Last Ten Years

Fiscal
Year Special Special

Ended Assessment Assessment
June 30 Billings Collections

1996 $
1997 -

1998 406,220 54,676
1999 - 23,043
2000 - 25,145
2001 88,257 38,725
2002 - 54,558
2003 - 55,543
2004 - 66,963
2005 - 61,519

Note: Franklin County completed paving of streets for the a
North Raleigh Farms and Inglewood subdivisions.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30th, 2005

Assessed Value & Taxable Property 3,103,720,609
8.00%

Debt Limit -8 Percent of Assessed Value $248,297,649

Gross debt
Total bonded debt 14,600,000
Authorized and unissued bonds 28,600,000
Lease financing agreements 16,840,000
Gross Debt $60,040,000

Total Amount of Applicable debt $60,040,000

Legal Debt Margin $188,257,649



Franklin County, North Carolina
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Years

Net Ratio of Net Net General
Fiscal General General Obligation
Year Obligation Obligation Bonded

Ended Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt
June 30 Value Debt Assessed Value Population Per CapIta

1996 1,371,380,041 450,000 0.0328% 42,738 10.53
1997 1,416,720,183 9,850,000 0.6953% 43,542 226.22
1998 1,526,017,482 19,250,000 12615% 44,440 433.17
1999 1,971,218,315 18,750,000 0.9512% 45,288 414.02
2000 2,128,005,580 17,813,000 0.8371% 45,332 392.95
2001 2,153,377,354 16,800,000 0.7802% 47,545 353.35
2002 2,279,050,498 15,825,000 0.6944% 48,818 324.16
2003 2,372,672,790 14,850,000 0.6259% 51,079 290.73
2004 2,505,635,618 13,875,000 0.5538% 52,855 262.51
2006 3,103,720,609 14,600,000 0.4704% 54,181 269.47

Source: NC Office of State Planning.
Franklin County Tax Assesor’s Office
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Franklin County, North Carolina

Q
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General
Obligation Bonded Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures
Last Ten Years

Ratio of Debt

o Fiscal Debt Service to
Year Total Total General Total General

Ended Interest Debt Governmental Governmental
o June 30 Principal on Bonds Service Expenditures Expenditures

1996 $ 100,000 $ 50,600 $ 150,600 $ 37,306,854 0.40%
1997 100,000 41,725 141,725 33,740,659 0.42%
1998 100,000 537,575 637,575 46,597,824 1.37%
1999 500,000 965,625 1,465,625 42,061,956 3.48%
2000 937,000 935,875 1,872,875 45,322,705 4.13%
2001 925,000 878,275 1803,275 45,346,611 3.98%
2002 975,000 832,800 1,807,800 51,318,867 3.52%
2003 975,000 784,700 1,759,700 49,360,396 3.57%
2004 975,000 736,600 1,711600 51,375,995 3.33%
2005 975,000 688,250 1,663,250 53,886,850 3.09%

Note: Indudes General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects.
Does not include COP Debt.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Computation of Direct and Underlying Debt
General Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2005

Net General Percent Amount
Obligation Applicable Applicable

Bonded debt To County To County

Direct:
Franklin County $14,600,000 100.00% $14,600,000

Underlying:
Town of Louisburg - 100.00% -

Town of Bunn - 100.00% -

Town of Youngsville - 100.00% -

Town of Franklinton - 100.00%

Totals $14,600,000 $14,600,000

Note: There is no general obligation debt in any other fund.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Fiscal
Year Per

Ended Capita School Unemployment
June 30 Population Income Enrollment Rate

1996 43,280 17,186 6,593 4.20%
1997 44,323 17,708 6,825 4.40%
1998 45,315 18,290 6,965 2.30%
1999 46,382 18,839 7,213 2.60%
2000 47,260 19,003 7,425 2.20%
2001 48,522 20,932 7,623 3.80%
2002 48,818 23,276 7,685 6.60%
2003 51,079 23,276 7,943 5.90%
2004 52,855 24,043 7,914 3.80%
2005 54,181 24,264 8,066 4.90%

SOURCE: 1) Office of State Planning
2) US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Miscellaneous Statistics
June 30,2005

Date of establishment 1779
Form of government CommissionerlManager

Employees:
Full-time, regular 410
Part-time, regular 43

Franklin County facilities and services
Sheriff protection

Number of stations I
Number of deputies and officers 41
Number of patrol units 5

Inspections
Residential Building permits issued 681

Cultural and recreational
Number of libraries 4
Number of volumes 99,070

Water and Sewer
Number of customers 2,183
Average daily consumption (in gallons) 1,613,562
Miles of water mains 141
Miles of sanitary sewers 32

Facilities and services not included in the primary government
Hospitals

Number of hospitals I
Number of patient beds 85

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity
Education

Number of school systems 2
Number of community colleges I
Number of junior colleges I

Recreation
Golf Courses 3
Swimming Pools - All Private 5
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Holden, Moss, Knott, Clafic, Copley & Boyle, PA

HOI.4IYEf’J1’’ 5)4 Dabney Drive - Post Office Box 177
In. Henderson, NC 27536

Knott Clark Copley & Hoyle, PA Pitoac 252.492.304)
Certified Public Accountants and consultan ‘ 252.492.5396

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the County Manager and
Members of the County Board
Franklin County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregated remaining fund
information of Franklin County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2005, which collectively comprises Franklin County’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2005. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Franklin County’s internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material In relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters invoMng the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Franklin County’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We
noted certain other matters that we reported to management in a separate letter dated
October 7, 2005.

SRANONE member
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within
the organization, members of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

a Xsoft ehzi1 /%phn S tn
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

October 7, 2005
Henderson, North Carolina

a
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Nolden, Moss, Knott, Clark, Copley & Boyle, PA

HOLDEN ii4 514 Dabney Drive - Post Office Box in
Henderson, MC 27536

Knott Clark Copley & Hoyle, PA Fbon 2524923041

Certified Public Accountants and consultants

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major Federal
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With 0MB Circular

A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the County Manager and
Members of the County Board
Franklin County, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Franklin County, North Carolina, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget
(0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental
Auditors in Noflh Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are
applicable to each of its malor federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.
Franklin County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditoi’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Franklin County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Franklin County’s
compliance based on our audit

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the Unfted States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and 0MB Circular A-I 33, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those
standards, 0MB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Franklin County’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Franklin County’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Franklin County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2005.

CRAItONE member
buUding business w4.sc
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Franklin County is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered Franklin County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance
with 0MB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose
all matters in the intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters invoMng
the intemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee,
management, others within the organization, members of County Commissioners, and
federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

9%tkt 97/au jzoe1fhzd gpl’S t2g4 fl
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

October 7, 2005
Henderson, North Carolina
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OI[)FN .1j1 514 Dabney Ddve - Post Office Box 177
LV..L Henderson, NC 27536

ott Clark Copley & Hoyle, PA Phone: 252A92.3041
riffled Public Accountants and Consultants Fax: 252.492.5396

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major State
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With Applicable
Sections of 0MB CIrcular A-133 and the State Single Audit ImplementatIon Act

To the County Manager and
Members of the County Board
Franklin County, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Franklin County, North Carolina, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to
each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2005. Franklin County’s
major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
State programs is the responsibility of Franklin County’s management Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Franklin County’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted oUr audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and applicable sections of 0MB Circular A-I 33, as described In the Audit
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of 0MB Circular A-133, and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major State program occurred. An audit indudes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Franklin County’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination on the Franklin County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Franklin County. complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2005.

GRAItONE member
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Franklin County is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered Franklin County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with applicable sections of 0MB Circular A-i 33 and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disdose
all mailers in the intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major State program
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
the intemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within
the organization, members of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

t/tus J5wli CIaAL flv’ç’ S?4 Al
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

October 7, 2005
Henderson, North Carolina



Franklin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report Issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified? __yes _&no

• Reportable condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses __yes none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted _yes

Federal Awards

Internal control over federal programs:

• Material weakness(es) Identified? __yes

• Reportable condition(s) Identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses _yes _.Z_none reported

Type of auditor’s report Issued on compliance for federal programs: Unqualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported In accordance
with Section 510(a) ofcircuiarA-133 __yes _&no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDftS Prooram Name

93.568 Low income Home Energy Assistance
93.778 Title XIX — Medicaid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $1,349,733.

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes _no
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Awards

Internal control ova major State progams:

• Material weakness(es) identified? __yes

• Reportable condition(s) Identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses _j’es X none reported

Type of audlto.’s report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported In accordance with the State
Single Audit Implementation Act __yes X no

Identification & major State programs:

Proaram Name
Public School Budding Capital Fund
State Aid to Airports

The other major State programs for Franklin County Is the Medical Assistance Program,
which Is a State match on a federal program. Therefore, this program has been Included In the
list of major federal programs above.

II. Financial Statement Findings

There were no current year findings.

Iii. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no current yea findings.

IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no current yea findings.
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None.

Franklin County, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005
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Frankfln County. North Carolina
Schedule of E#eians of Fedeml and Stale Awards

For the Year Ended June 30,2005

Fedmid Pna4nii Fed. ed&

_________
_____

Ea.... c,....aa

Oi of Wild De-% J

O’MeFiM nra si
Ohisdon of Wild

Wild ca’e — Dn..a Fmid — ..a., 141.101
Qid csflnd Dridop.e* Raid -M...L&., 304.110
ao Care and OwvfliI Raid - li

______

-

T Care ..k,...,LWi 1,oe2Si -

moth 83W -

A-n.. for Needy Fanses flais -

-

- - 83304
TANF-MOE - V0A01

Told fl& Wild C.o.aQIoaa 4) 1.271321 481.714

Caes Ir, Ma.... end Ma.IJ S&id
Passed4vwçh the itt Deot ci Heemi end Nor..i Seniceec

Db4&cn ci Medcel Aeáa
Obed InS.- Medld Aeebtsice Pvc)wn Izm flhI7A27 10,046302 230046

Oli ci Sodel Ssv
Medcel A.Ji... PiId -poa.aa. fine 704,683 30,383 *0.749
Stale CIil&ews nan PogmmNC Heeli WicO 83.707 44.413 1083 12.111

CsSn
lie PLC. Dan. &Hea mid Ik

of Pitt Halt
So.rcai GUi 77.704 -

Cooperta 4..d.flbOned Cba...Iwe
&ace.nCaEfl Oscisi Rk, 5O00

Pvevflve Hldth mid H.s..ra moth GUi lull

I. mid sara j.j.ALLJ,.

Passed4vwdi the PLC. 0.0. ci Han aid Pla. l.a
&PttlcHet

taalmi Greta *130 . -

T.nrn I AaS.... ir, Nee F83SII 6.909
NC Heed a— aid *dic Prewnton Prcgn 000
Metni end Gild Health Senlees moth Qa 210.111 . -

37,417.075 10.470.403 4,0013Th

US. ci I4.....L..d Sety
Pa,ead#rcm4i the NC. 0..,.wl,.....LdC4te Catid

end Pitt Sear
Stale I&...J.4 Senay Greet Prows.. 97.004 20044E-T40014 91343 -

Oked Pi9n
Bw...., Food AM lisle 97.024 flSle-00,2

117.109

______________ _____________

ToldS 44394,100 10.478.402 4.004,673

124



I
I p

z b I I
I I I I

nfl
19

1P
[1(

1i
t

I
I

111
1

1b(
i ff

I
Ii I

-l ij
i

I t 8
.
.

g i
2

I I

10

[..[[
I

.
.

[
[
I

I

!if ‘It

I
I

[[

I III II! II

I
“
R

n

h
i ‘p SQ I

.
.

.
I

I
I

I
I

I

k
a

ti
I

I
I

[W.
LI

II
E

[I
I.

‘
I
,

4b
[U[I

I
[

1
,
1

1
1

1
[[.

L



Franklin County. North Carolina
Sdiedute of Expenditure. of Federal arid SAwards

For the Year Ended J.aie 30.2005
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